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Vision Statement

HKCAAVQ is locally, nationally, regionally and globally
recognised as an efficient, effective, innovative and
accessible quality assurance agency providing academic
and vocational accreditation and assessment services.
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Mission Statement

To safeguard the quality of the academic and vocational
qualifications available to learners within the Qualifications
Framework in Hong Kong and to strengthen providers’ quality
assurance capability; and

To provide professional advice through assessment and consulting
services and to develop, promote and disseminate good practices
on quality assurance.
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This annual report covers the reporting year from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 in the text and the financial statements unless stated otherwise.

BEFRIGERE - RER 2 AX R BIRERE2014F4F1H E20156F3A31 HHMEFE -



Contents

Highlights of the Year SEEBI& 2
Chairman’s Message £/EFES 9
Executive Director's Report RSB RS 12
The Council fIE8B 16

Operational Review T{E#R4
Academic Accreditation and Audit E4lysF 5 & 1% & 21

Vocational Accreditation and Development B 2 & FaT s R E 32

Quallifications Assessment E3fFsT (4 39
Qualifications Register & & 4 filt 43
Research, Consultancy and Training fff5% - BRI ARG K355 48
External Liaison and Engagement 349N & 54
Financial Report B384 61

Appendices Mk
List of Council Members 122k E &L & 108

Terms of Reference of Committees ¥ %% S @i 41 E 110



Highlights of the Year
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Visit by HEEACT

A delegation from the Higher
Education Evaluation &
Accreditation Council of Taiwan
(HEEACT) visited HKCAAVQ on
23-25 April 2014. Apart from giving
HKCAAVQ staff a presentation on
its evaluation and accreditation work
for higher education programmes
offered in Taiwan, the delegates
also participated in an accreditation
exercise as observers and attended
a Specialist Training Workshop to
learn about HKCAAVQ’s quality
assurance model and practice.
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Review of OUHK

HKCAAVQ conducted a Review
of the Open University of Hong
Kong (OUHK) in June 2014.
The review was conducted by a
Panel comprising seven local and
international experts, and focused
on how the OUHK assures the
academic standards of its awards
and the quality of students’ learning
experience at the institutional
level. After the review, HKCAAVQ
concluded that OUHK has an
effective and comprehensive QA
mechanism to assure the quality of
its programmes.
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HKCAAVQ and CPE entered into
a MoU

HKCAAVQ and the Council for
Private Education (CPE), Singapore,
entered into a MoU to formalise
and to strengthen collaboration.
The signing ceremony took place
at the HKCAAVQ office on 18 June
2014. The MoU was signed by
Prof William Lee, Executive Director
of HKCAAVQ, and Mr Brandon
Lee, Chief Executive of CPE, and
witnessed by Ms Michelle Li, then
Deputy Secretary for Education, and
Mr Jacky Foo, Singapore Consul-
General Hong Kong.
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Consultation on NLP
Re-accreditation

A consultation session was held
on 18 June 2014 to gather views
from non-local programme (NLP)
operators on the approach and
the newly developed tools for
re-accreditation of NLP. Feedback
collected at the consultation session
used to fine-tune the associated
tools which were published on the
HKCAAVQ website in August 2014.
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Highlights of the Year

CAT policy and principles

The Education Bureau announced
the introduction of the Credit
Accumulation and Transfer (CAT)
Policy and Principles on 22 July
2014 to facilitate the recognition of
learning, to minimise unnecessary
repeated learning, and to effectively
support lifelong learning. As
the Qualifications Register (QR)
Authority, HKCAAVQ revised the
QR to allow for the identification of
CAT arrangements and provision of
information for learners on CAT.
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Revised guidelines on the
Four-stage QA Process

As a result of the review of the
Four-stage Quality Assurance (QA)
Process, HKCAAVQ revised and
published the associated Guidelines
on its website on 15 August 2014.
The revised Guidelines set out the
criteria, standards and processes
adopted by HKCAAVQ when
carrying out accreditation services
under the QF.
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Highlights of the Year
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HKCAAVQ/NIAD-UE Joint
Workshop

HKCAAVQ and the National
Institution for Academic Degrees
and University Evaluation (NIAD-
UE), Japan, organised a workshop
in Hong Kong on 29 September
2014 under the two agencies’ MoU.
The workshop allowed staff of both
agencies to share experience on
recognition and quality assurance of
higher education and transnational
education. Staff also discussed
commonalities and differences
between the Hong Kong and Japan
quality assurance systems, and in
particular focused on how NIAD-
UE conducts skill-based training for
specialists and operators.
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Information Session in Macao

HKCAAVQ has since 2011 been
commissioned by the Tertiary
Education Services Office of Macao
to develop four sets of guidelines,
covering institutional accreditation,
institutional audit, program
accreditation and the guidelines for
use by external quality assurance
agencies. The guidelines were
presented to the higher education
sector in Macao on 7 Oct 2014.
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HKCAAVQ signed MoU with QQl
HKCAAVQ and the Quality
and Qualifications Ireland (QQI)
entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) with the aim
of establishing a partnership to
enhance external quality assurance
and improve the quality of education
and training in Hong Kong and
Ireland. HKCAAVQ and QQlI are
both responsible for a number of
quality assurance activities ranging
from accreditation to qualifications
assessment. The MoU was signed
by Prof Lee and Dr Padraig Walsh,
Chief Executive of the QQ, in Dublin
on 30 October.
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Annual Operators Briefing

The Annual Briefing on Accreditation
for operators was held on 31
October. The event gathered
approximately 90 representatives of
academic and vocational operators.
The briefing is an opportunity for us
to share the latest developments
with the sector. It also serves
the purposes of presenting the
results from our annual Operators’
Survey. The Annual Briefing is one
of the major initiatives taken by
the HKCAAVQ to exchange views
with operators on our services for
continuous improvement.
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Highlights of the Year

Technical exchange at NZQA

3 Staff of HKCAAVQ participated in
a technical exchange programme
at NZQA on 24-28 November
2014. The main topics of the
5-day programme were degree
programme approval and
qualifications development including
graduate profiles and knowledge
management. The experience
gained in this exchange added value
to our quality assurance processes,
in particular the development of
graduate profiles.
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Meeting with the EQF Advisory
Group

A delegation comprising
representatives of the European
Commission, the European
Qualifications Framework (EQF)
Advisory Group and quality
assurance practitioners from New
Zealand and Indonesia visited
HKCAAVQ on 27 November 2014
to understand the vision, mission,
structures and QA approach of
HKCAAVQ. The discussion provided
the international experts with a
general overview of the QA system
in Hong Kong.
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Highlights of the Year
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HKCAAVQ builds partnership
with UK NARIC

HKCAAVQ entered into a
partnership agreement with the UK
National Recognition Information
Centre (UK NARIC) to enhance
collaboration on qualifications
assessment in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom. The MoU was
signed by Prof Lee and Dr Cloud
Bai-Yun, Chief Executive of UK
NARIC, at the HKCAAVQ office on
22 December 2014.
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Focus Group Meetings on
Accreditation Tools

Three focus group meetings were
conducted in January 2015 to
consult operators about a new set
of accreditation tools, including the
guidance notes and submission
guides on Initial Evaluation,
Learning Programme Accreditation
and Learning Programme Re-
Accreditation for local programmes.
Representatives from 30 operators
participated in the meetings.
Feedback collected has been used
for refining these accreditation tools.
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QR Operators Briefing
HKCAAVQ with the support of
the Qualifications Framework
Secretariat (QFS) organised the QR
Operators Briefing on 16 January
2015. Over 220 representatives
of operators from both the self-
accrediting and non-self-accrediting
sectors attended the briefing to
learn about the latest developments
of QF and QR, including progress
on the implementation of the
Awards Title Scheme (ATS) and use
of QF credit.
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QESS Workshop

Funded by the Government’s
Quality Enhancement Support
Scheme (QESS), HKCAAVQ is
organising a series of external
forums and internal workshops on
good practices in quality assurance
in 2015-2016. To kick-off the
project, Mr John Randall, former
Chief Executive of Quality Assurance
Agency for Higher Education (QAA)
in the UK, conducted a workshop
on “Institutional Level Issues in
Accreditation and Quality Audit”
in January 2015 at the HKCAAVQ
office.
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Highlights of the Year

HKCAAVQ builds partnership
with AQA

HKCAAVQ entered into partnership
agreements with the Academic
Quality Agency for New Zealand
Universities (AQA) to enhance
collaboration in quality enhancement
of education in Hong Kong and
New Zealand. The memorandum
was signed by Prof Lee and Dr
Jan Cameron, Director of AQA and
witnessed by Ms Gabrielle Rush,
New Zealand’s Consul-General to
Hong Kong and Macao and Dr Alex
Chan, Vice-Chairman of HKCAAVQ
in Hong Kong on 23 January 2015.
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HKPC’s Passing Out Parade

The Chairman of HKCAAVQ, The
Honourable Martin Liao, inspected
a passing-out parade at the Hong
Kong Police College (HKPC) on
24 January 2015. Speaking at the
ceremony, Mr Liao emphasised
the important role of HKPC and
congratulated the graduates who
were the first batch of Police officers
awarded the Professional Diploma
in Policing accredited by HKCAAVQ
and thus recognised as meeting the
HKQF standard at Level 4.
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Highlights of the Year

ﬂiix%«?&

Specialist Appointment
Ceremony

More than 80 Specialists attended
the Specialists Appointment
Ceremony held on 30 January 2015
— an annual event of HKCAAVQ
to welcome new or re-appointed
Specialists to HKCAAVQ. HKCAAVQ
appoints Specialists to serve on
accreditation panels and to advise
on quality assurance matters.
As Specialists are key to our
accreditation process, HKCAAVQ
attach great importance to keeping
them abreast of the development of
the Council as well as the QF and
QR.
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Launch of Quality Management
System

With the support of the Education
Bureau through the Quality
Enhancement Support Scheme
(QESS), the HKCAAVQ Quality
Management System (QMS) was
launched on 27 February 2015.
The QMS provides an internal
centralised database for storing
data in relation to academic and
vocational accreditation. With a
built-in Document Management
System, it offers users advanced
functions for approving documents,
retrieving, analysing and reporting
data.
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2015 INQAAHE Biennial
Conference

HKCAAVQ participated in the
International Network for Quality
Assurance Agencies in Higher
Education (INQAAHE) 2015
Conference themed “Changing
Landscape of Higher Education:
New Demands on Quality
Assurance” in Chicago from 30
March to 2 April. The agenda of
the conference covered QA issues
arising from increased diversity
of higher education institutions,
the impact of internationalisation
on quality and quality assurance
and the impact of external quality
assurance on higher education
systems.
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Chairman’s Message
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The Honourable Martin LIAO BRI&E, SBS, JP
Chairman xfE

As in the past years, the education landscape in Hong Kong
continued to evolve in this reporting year. Whilst we could see some
self-financed post-secondary institutions taking mitigating measures
in face of declining student population, we also saw an increasing
number of local institutions applying for accreditation of degree
programmes and seeking Institutional Review and Programme Area
Accreditation (PAA), with a view to ultimately attain private university
status. In the meantime, the call for due recognition of vocational
education has become more and more vocal. Now is perhaps a
good time to review the effort in raising public awareness of the
importance of vocational education in Hong Kong. Amidst the rapid
changes, HKCAAVQ must remain alert and vigilant, and ensure
that its processes are current, relevant and responsive to changing
circumstances and emerging trends.

In 2014/15, we have continued our efforts in achieving our vision and
mission. As before, we continued to deliver high quality services and
strengthened communications with stakeholders. We have brought
our own perspective more sharply in focus through internal strategic
planning and outwardly through an independent external review that
benchmarked our work and services against specific internationally-
recognised norms.
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Chairman’s Message
ITREFS

Earlier this year, the Council has laid down the blueprint for its future
development in a revised Vision and Mission Statement and a new
Strategic Plan covering a four-year period from October 2015 to
September 2019. While quality remains at the forefront, other core
values such as integrity, independence, transparency and innovation
are also important to us. As we go forward with our revised Vision
and Mission Statement and new Strategic Plan, we shall rely upon our
ongoing efforts with our stakeholders both in achieving the objectives
and meeting the challenges.

Further, in an independent external review undertaken this year, we
have benchmarked our policies, processes and practices in academic
accreditation against the Guidelines of Good Practice (GGP) in
Quality Assurance developed by the International Network for Quality
Assurance Agencies in Higher Education (INQAAHE). The external
review was a rigorous process that involved examination of evidence
and relevant data in a self-evaluation report and interviews with
stakeholders by an independent and highly qualified external panel of
experts. The exercise was a useful tool to evaluate our performance
and identify areas for improvement. It was also intended to test
adherence of our operations to international standards and increase
public confidence in our work.

Another important review that the Council has undertaken in the past
year is the refinement of the Scope of Programme Area Accreditation
(PAA). As an outcome of the review of the Four-stage Quality
Assurance Process, we have set up a Standing Panel on PAA Scope
to advise on the scope of programme areas/sub-areas and to refine
the sub-areas in the list of Areas of Study and Training under the
Qualifications Register. We believe the new classification system,
which will be considered by the Council later this year, will provide
clear guidance regarding the scope of programme area in PAA while
allowing some flexibility of programme design and development.

Throughout the year, HKCAAVQ continued to work in close
collaboration with the Government in support of the Qualifications
Framework (QF), in initiatives such as the Award Titles Scheme, Credit
Accumulation and Transfer and Use of QF credits. We have also
started collaboration with the Macao Special Administrative Region
Government by providing consultancy services to help develop a
quality assurance mechanism and the associated quality assurance
framework for its higher education sector. We appreciate the
opportunity to participate in Macao’s higher education development
and are pleased to share our knowledge and experience with our
neighbour.
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Chairman’s Message

In 2015, the Council will celebrate its 25th Anniversary. This is an
important milestone for us. We are proud of our history and our
contributions in quality assurance to the higher education and
training sector in Hong Kong. We shall honour the anniversary by a
series of seminars and events that we believe will add value to the
development of education quality in Hong Kong.

This year is my last year of service as Chairman of HKCAAVQ.
My years of service on the Council have been long and it has truly
been a great pleasure and a great privilege for me. It is with fond
memories and profound gratitude that | wish to thank all current
and past members of the Council, the Secretariat and our partner
institutions for their invaluable support and guidance over the years.
| have witnessed HKCAAVQ taking great strides in achievement over
the years and gaining the recognition that it deserves, and | have no
doubt that it will go from strength to strength in its future endeavours.

The Honourable Martin LIAO, SBS, JP
Chairman
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Executive Director’'s Report
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Professor LEE Keng-mun, William Z=4& 2 253%
Executive Director &%=

2014/15 was an eventful year for the Hong Kong Council for
Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ).
We have in the past year achieved our goals and objectives and
embarked upon new initiatives aimed at addressing the challenges
facing the higher education and training sectors today.

The theme for this year’'s Annual Report is “International Recognition
for Quality”. This is to highlight our ongoing efforts in pursuing
international recognition and benchmarking ourselves against
established global standards. | am pleased to share with you the
progress we have made as well as major work and achievements of
HKCAAVQ in the year under review.
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Executive Director’s Report

International Recognition

Since the launch of the Qualifications Framework (QF) in 2008,
HKCAAVQ has been continuously working in consultation with its
stakeholders to improve and refine its quality assurance approach.
As an accreditation agency, we consider it important and necessary
to also subject ourselves to an external review to evaluate the quality
and effectiveness of our accreditation work. To this end, we took the
initiative to undergo an external review against the Guidelines of Good
Practice (GGP) in Quality Assurance developed by the International
Network for Quality Assurance Agencies in Higher Education
(INQAAHE) to benchmark our policies, processes and practices
against these international standards. The review will determine
whether we operate in alignment with the GGP.

In early 2015, we completed a critical self-review to reflect on the
effectiveness and outcomes of our quality assurance work; a site visit
by a panel consisting of local and international members will take
place in June 2015. When the INQAAHE Board has made a decision
about HKCAAVQ's alignment with the GGP, we will publish the
external review report. We are confident that this external review will
help enhance HKCAAVQ'’s international recognition and increase its
accountability to the community.

Innovation for Excellence

The emphasis on standards and sharing expertise concerns
sustainable infrastructure. Another important step we have taken this
year is to facilitate our internal knowledge management and enhance
efficiency is the development of a Quality Management System
(QMS). Thanks to the support of the Education Bureau through
the Quality Enhancement Support Scheme (QESS), the QMS was
launched in February 2015 offering advanced functions to streamline
our accreditation work processes. HKCAAVQ has now moved on to
the next phase of the IT project with an ultimate goal of building an
advanced e-platform that enables operator e-submissions and more
efficient and effective information exchange.

Also last year, we successfully applied for QESS funding to carry out
a project that aims at promoting a quality culture within the local post-
secondary education sector through the sharing of practices through
events and a web-based knowledgebase. We hope this will support
operators’ efforts in enhancing their quality assurance capacity.
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Executive Director’s Report

REBREmE

Sharing Expertise

With long standing experience in accreditation and good reputation in
quality assurance, HKCAAVQ has begun exporting its knowledge and
expertise to places outside Hong Kong with the required approval
of the Secretary for Education. Since 2013, we have been offering
consultancy services to the Macao Special Administrative Region
(SAR) Government to help develop a quality assurance mechanism
for its higher education sector. Over the last two years we have been
working in consultation with the Macao government to develop a set
of evaluation tools. HKCAAVQ is honoured to play an active part in
the quality assurance development in Macao, and we are excited to
move on to the next step to test the instrument in practice.

Connecting the World

Over the year, HKCAAVQ has maintained active participation in
the international quality assurance communities through forging
partnership with overseas quality assurance agencies and sharing our
knowledge and experience in international conferences. Given the
maturity of our quality assurance model for transnational education,
we were invited to participate in the Quality Beyond Boundaries
(@BB) — a forum for the countries that are most active in transnational
education either as sending or receiving countries. The project
participants aim at collaborating on how to solve challenges in quality
assuring International Branch Campuses (IBCs). With the concerted
efforts of the involved agencies, we believe the QBB platform will
help promote communication and collaboration in enhancing quality
assurance of IBCs and it may ultimately streamline the quality
assurance of institutions operating in multiple jurisdictions.

More recently, we have successfully applied for affiliate status of the
European Association for Quality Assurance in Higher Education
(ENQA). The affiliate status allows us to keep abreast of the quality
assurance developments in Europe and to establish closer links with
relevant quality assurance agencies there. We believe our strong
network in Europe would facilitate our contribution to the ground work
of the alignment of the HKQF and European Qualifications Framework
(EQF), which will take the HKQF to a new milestone.
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Executive Director’s Report

Reaching Greater Heights

On a final note, | would like to express my sincere thanks to all
HKCAAVQ'’s stakeholders for their support and to, members of
the Council, as well as the staff of the Secretariat for their unfailing
support and commitment to our work in safeguarding the quality of
education and training provision in Hong Kong.

In early 2015, the Council approved the revised Vision and Mission
Statements and the 2015-19 Strategic Plan. The Strategic Plan
includes a set of strategic directions to guide HKCAAVQ’s work
over the coming four-year period. This Strategic Plan identifies long-
term goals for HKCAAVQ and serves as a roadmap for how we will
proceed to accomplish our mission and vision. With a holistic plan
in place and the implementation of the review of the Four-Stage
Quality Assurance Process, HKCAAVQ is in a strong position to
move forward and manage its diverse set of services effectively and
efficiently as they continue to develop.

Professor LEE Keng-mun, William
Executive Director
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The Council

AT = A

The Council

The Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications (HKCAAVQ) was formed under the HKCAAVQ
Ordinance (Cap 1150). In 2007 it assumed the statutory roles as the
Accreditation Authority and Qualifications Register Authority under the
Hong Kong Qualifications Framework under Cap 592.

HKCAAVQ provides accreditation services to post-secondary
education institutions and vocational education and training
institutions as well as course providers to perform its statutory duty.
Furthermore, we provide assessment services for the general public in
the form of qualifications assessments and advisory and consultancy
services in education qualifications and standards to government
bureaux and professional organisations in Hong Kong and outside of
Hong Kong subject to approval from the Secretary for Education.

The Council is composed of members appointed by the Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. As of 31
March 2015, the Council membership of 14 includes four non-local
members and 10 local members. Its local membership reflects
expertise and experience in quality assurance, education and training
as well as links with industry. The non-local members come primarily
from countries with well-established external quality assurance
systems. They provide valuable advice and global views, allowing
us to ensure that HKCAAVQ'’s approaches are in line with the latest
international practices.

The Council meets formally twice a year. Local members meet twice
between full Council meetings.

The work of the Council is supported by three standing committees:
the Qualifications and Accreditation Committee, the Personnel
and Administration Committee, and the Finance Committee. Each
Committee has its own terms of reference, which are detailed in the
Appendix.

The Secretariat

The daily operation of HKCAAVQ is undertaken by the Secretariat
under the leadership of the Executive Director (ED) who is an
ex-officio member of the Council. Since October 2015 the ED has
been supported by two Deputy Executive Directors.

As of end of March 2015, HKCAAVQ Secretariat had 97 full-time
staff, most of whom are quality assurance practitioners, seasoned
trainers or education professionals. There are also two part-time staff
including one consultant who provides legal advice.
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Organisation Chart of the Secretariat
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Academic Accreditation and Audit

HKCAAVQ provides an extensive range of academic accreditation
services, including accreditation of programmes offered by post-
secondary institutions at postgraduate, degree and sub-degree levels,
and non-local learning programmes (NLP) registered or exempted
from registration under the Non-local Higher and Professional
Courses (Regulation) Ordinance (Cap 493). We also conduct
Institutional Reviews (IR) for institutions seeking registration under the
Post Secondary Colleges Ordinance (Cap 320) for degree-awarding
status.

External Review against International
Standards

To evaluate the effectiveness of HKCAAVQ's accreditation work in
higher education and to be recognised to work in alignment with
international standards, we have taken the initiative to undergo
an external review against the Guidelines of Good Practice (GGP)
developed by the International Network for Quality Assurance
Agencies in Higher Education (INQAAHE). The outcome of the review
is to determine if our higher education accreditation work aligns with
the GGP.

In the reporting period, HKCAAVQ conducted a critical self-review
and submitted the self-review report to an external review Panel
consisting of local and international experts in higher education and
quality assurance in March 2015. A site visit will take place in June
2015 in which the Panel will meet with Council members and staff as
well as external stakeholders to discuss their views of HKCAAVQ’s
academic accreditation work and its alignment with the GGP.

This external review will enhance the positioning of HKCAAVQ as an
internationally recognised quality assurance agency, increase our
accountability to the community and help foster public understanding
of the value of our work.
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Academic Accreditation and Audit

20 7P 2F KA

Local Programme Accreditation and
Institutional Review

In 2014/15, HKCAAVQ conducted an Initial Evaluation (IE) at
Qualifications Framework (QF) level 6 for an institution preparing to
offer Master Degree programmes, Learning Programme Accreditation
(LPA) for a total of 24 programmes and Learning Programme
Re-accreditation (re-LPA) for 10 programmes, offered by a total of 12
operators. We also accredited the first Doctoral degree programme
since the introduction of the QF in 2008. Apart from the programmes
in Business Administration, Design, Engineering, Languages and
Nursing, we also accredited programmes in emerging fields such
as Food Science and Safety as well as Horticulture and Landscape
Architecture at QF level 5.

In the reporting period, HKCAAVQ conducted two Institutional Review
(IR) exercises. One of the exercises was for an institution seeking
registration under Cap 320 for degree-awarding status, while the
other was a review of OUHK (See highlights of the year).

Furthermore, we conducted three Programme Area Accreditation
(PAA) exercises, covering eight programme areas for two institutions
seeking to develop and operate learning programme(s) within an
approved scope of a programme area at a specified QF level.
During the year we also processed requests from eight operators for
substantial changes to 42 programmes.
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Academic Accreditation and Audit

Non-local Programme Accreditation

HKCAAVQ provides accreditation services for NLP registered or
exempted under Cap 493. An NLP accredited by HKCAAVQ enjoys a
similar status to locally-accredited programmes, and its qualifications
can be registered on the Qualifications Register (QR) and recognised
under the QF.

In the year under review, HKCAAVQ conducted IE for six partnerships
and LPA for 20 NLPs in diverse disciplines such as Business,
Tourism, Psychology, Design, Architecture, Visual Communication
and Sports Management with the participation of four local operators
and eight overseas partners. In addition, we processed requests for
substantial changes to 27 NLP involving three local operators and
eight overseas partners.

S0P E R &%=

FEARMRIZFEF

FERRRBECGIA S EREEHE
(RE) &) (B4938) iE Mk E#H %
A A SE A ERAZ SR AP B R TS © RA
R A RRIZ — 1 - BB ERIEAIR
B HEFEEFERERA  THIR
BEAMLE -

EREHA - FEBAOERMLEHRE
ROAEBINEWRE - TR T NIABH
BRI EE - BR T 20MEFEAR R
BoORERE  RE - LIES - RE
BE GBEEREEERSEME
o LLsh - IR T = AR
FM)\MEEINE I E 27 B S M RIZ(E
HERIEHRAI R

23



24

Academic Accreditation and Audit

20 7P 2F KA

Breakdown of Academic Programmes Accredited or Re-accredited (1 April 2014 — 31 March 2015)
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Assessment of Non-local Courses

HKCAAVQ is appointed by the Registrar of Non-local Higher and
Professional Education Courses to provide professional advice as to
whether a particular non-local course delivered in Hong Kong leading
to the award of a non-local academic qualification or professional
qualification meets the registration criteria as stipulated in Cap 493.
We also advise the Registrar whether a registered non-local course
continues to meet the registration criteria through annual assessment
(so-called annual returns).

In the reporting year, HKCAAVQ assessed 55 new applications,
an increase of 25% as compared with the figure last year. Apart
from assessment of new applications, HKCAAVQ also assessed
376 annual returns and 193 applications for changes to registered
courses.
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Academic Accreditation and Audit

20 7P 2F K

Breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment (1 April 2014 - 31 March 2015) by discipline
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Academic Accreditation and Audit

20 7P 2F KA

Breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment (1 April 2014 — 31 March 2015) by level of study
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HKCAAVQ, commissioned by the Labour and Welfare Bureau (LWB), HERESTIRENR (BER) ET -
is responsible for advising the LWB on the registrability of courses to RAEREFEaRBEESESNES
be included in the list of reimbursable courses under the Continuing AMAREEECES I BEENRIER
Education Fund (CEF), and monitoring the quality and relevancy of 2 IRHER  URERAZMREN
courses after registration. H=NMAEEMEITER -

Assessment of CEF Courses

In the reporting period, HKCAAVQ conducted 85 surprise audit FEREHRN - FTEREIT T8N RERE
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visits and assessed 1,138 applications, including 408 new course
applications and 730 applications for amendments to registered CEF
reimbursable courses.
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Academic Accreditation and Audit
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Breakdown of applications for assessment of CEF new reimbursable courses (1 April 2014 - 31 March 2015)
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Academic Accreditation and Audit

20 7P 2F KA

Continuous Enhancement of
Accreditation Service

HKCAAVQ makes continuous efforts to further improve our services
and to keep pace with the development of higher education in
Hong Kong. We are actively engaging in communication with our
stakeholders in different settings and collecting their feedback in
order to enhance our services.

In June 2014, HKCAAVQ conducted a focus group meeting to gather
views from NLP operators on the approach to re-accreditation of
NLP and their feedback on the newly developed accreditation tools.
In the same session, we also introduced the forthcoming government
initiative on policy and principles of credit accumulation and transfer
(CAT). The associated tools were fine-tuned based on the feedback
collected and uploaded onto our website in August 2014.

To enhance collaboration with the academic sector, we reached out
to key stakeholders through different networking activities, including
briefing sessions, tailor-made workshops and presentations to
acquaint them with the accreditation criteria and procedures.
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Academic Accreditation and Audit

Guidelines on the Four-stage Quality
Assurance Process

Since 2013, 11 refinements to the Four-stage Quality Assurance (QA)
Process have progressively been implemented after a comprehensive
review of the guidelines conducted in consultation with stakeholders.
In response to the refinements, the Guidelines on the Four-stage
Quality Assurance Process (Guidelines) were revised and published
on HKCAAVQ website in August 2014.

Based on the revised Guidelines, HKCAAVQ made corresponding
refinements to the guidance notes on IE, LPA and re-LPA for local
programmes. The refined guidance notes also incorporate recent
government initiatives including graduate profile, CAT and QF credits;
They also include the requirements for degree-granting institutions
seeking accreditation of postgraduate degree programmes at QF
levels 6 and 7.

In January 2015, we organised a focus group meeting with operators
to share our proposed revisions to the refined guidance notes.
Following the feedback collected in the focus group meeting, the
refined guidance notes were published on our website in March 2015.
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Development of Graduate Profile

Starting from the 2015/16 academic year, post-Secondary
Colleges (PSCs) registered under Cap 320 will be requested by the
Government to publish a graduate profile. The graduate profile should
include expected education and employment pathways. Operators
are encouraged to conduct surveys of students’ employment and
articulation pathways; and publish the survey findings related to the
future employability and articulation for further studies for students
from their degree programmes.

In response to this requirement, HKCAAVQ has since June 2014
required registered PSCs to provide the relevant information when
they seek LPA. The first Summary Report with graduate profiles of
two new degree programmes to be offered by a registered PSC was
published in HKCAAVQ website in February 2015.

Quality Enhancement Support Scheme
(QESS)

In 2014, HKCAAVQ was granted funding under the Education
Bureau’s Quality Enhancement Support Scheme to carry out a
project to improve quality assurance practices and promote a quality
culture within the local post-secondary education sector. The project
includes internal workshops on international quality assurance
perspectives conducted by overseas experts, a series of forums for
sharing of good practices among local institutions, and development
and maintenance of a public web-based knowledgebase.

The first QESS workshop was held on the subject of “Institutional
Level Issues in Accreditation and Quality Audit” by an international
expert from the United Kingdom in January 2015. In 2015 and
2016, six workshops and six forums will be organised. The practices
identified in the workshops and presented in the forums will be
consolidated into the knowledgebase to facilitate dissemination
across the sector. The knowledgebase will serve as an information
portal to support local institutions in enhancing their quality assurance
capacity.
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Academic Accreditation and Audit

Looking Forward

We look forward to extending our accreditation and consultancy
services to institutions in Macau in support of the development of
the Macao Higher Education Evaluation Framework. Strengthening
professional knowledge is essential to ensure that our staff are up-
to-date with the rapid changes in the education sector and thus
capable of taking on future challenges. To this end, HKCAAVQ has
been inviting overseas and local subject specialists to deliver talks on
a wide range of topics related to good practices in quality assurance.
We will also continue to work closely with different stakeholders to
ensure that there is the high degree of understanding of accreditation
purposes and requirements as well as the roles and responsibilities
of operators and HKCAAVQ in the accreditation process. With the
publication of revised Guidance Notes, we anticipate that operators
will benefit from the new initiatives such as the introduction of a
Facilitation Phase in the accreditation process and a refined approach
to re-accreditation with an emphasis on the outcome aspects of
learning programmes.
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The demand for accreditation and assessment service from the
vocational education and training (VET) sector has been growing
steadily. There has been an increase both in the number and diversity
of operators and programmes seeking our services.

Accreditation Service for the VET sector

In the reporting year, the demand for accreditation from new
operators increased significantly. Last year, HKCAAVQ completed
37 Initial Evaluations (IE), 119 Learning Programme Accreditations
(LPA) and 326 Learning Programme Re-accreditations (Re-LPA) for
VET operators from various sectors including public organisations,
education/training institutes, professional bodies, non-governmental
organisations, trade associations, and commercial corporations of
different scales.

With the support from industries and public organisations,
HKCAAVQ accredited a wide spectrum of programmes including
pre-employment training, in-house training, in-service training, and
professional development programmes in various industries, such as
banking, insurance and retail, as well as for organisations including
the Hong Kong Jockey Club, Ngong Ping 360 and the Hong Kong
Police College.
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Breakdown of vocational programmes accreditation and re-accreditation (1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015)
EHAETERREEENBEXEREREH A (2014545160 £201563H31H)
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In 2014, HKCAAVQ embarked on a large scale LPA and Re-LPA
exercise for the Employees Retraining Board. Due to the large
volume of courses, this exercise was organised in 16 batches. As at
the end of March 2015, 271 programmes have been accredited or
re-accredited, resulting in around 2,000 entries on the QR.

In November 2014, HKCAAVQ accredited Applied Learning (ApL)
courses, targeting non-Chinese speaking students. The ApL course
has been successfully accredited as meeting the standards at QF
level 3 and are recognised as subjects within HKDSE.

The positioning of ApL courses in the QF at level 3 together with the
Yi Jin Diploma has established a major reference point for learners,
parents, institutions, and employers to examine and benchmark the
learning outcomes at senior secondary level.

Since the implementation of QF in 2008, the Education Bureau has
formed 19 ITACs for various industries with a view to developing
industry-based Specification of Competency Standards (SCS). In
the development of the SCSs, HKCAAVQ acts as the moderator.
During the year, HKCAAVQ moderated the draft SCSs for the Elderly
Care Service, Manufacturing and Technology and Banking/Private
Banking industries and the supplementary SCSs for the Printing and
Publishing industry.

Course providers are encouraged to develop SCS-based
programmes by adopting the relevant Units of Competencies
specified in the SCS. In the reporting period, the number of
SCS-based training programmes accredited by HKCAAVQ on QR
has increased from 235 to 315.
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Breakdown of SCS-based programmes (QF levels 1-4) on the QR (1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015)
LHREREEMNEED BERE (EBELBE1248) BB (201454510 £2015563H31H)

Industry
TSR
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Catering SRR %
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Information & Communications Technology & =R & =A%
Jewellery BREE 5
Logistics ¥ 3
Printing & Publishing ENfll 5z H ik %
Property Management #) 3 & 1 3
Retail TE %
Watch & Clock $E#k %
Total #F]

Quality Assurance Services

In the school sector, HKCAAVQ continues to be commissioned by
the Education Bureau to conduct the quality assurance study to
ensure the quality of the Applied Learning (ApL) courses in the school
sector. During the reporting period, visits were conducted to seven
ApL courses which were delivered by five different institutions in the
tertiary education sector.
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Assessment of CPD Programmes

To increase the transparency and improve the efficiency of
assessment, HKCAAVQ acted upon the feedback collected from
the Year-end Evaluation of HKCAAVQ's Assessment Service for the
Insurance Intermediaries and amended the Continuing Professional
Development (CPD) application forms for the Insurance Intermediaries
Quality Assurance Scheme (IIQAS). The updated forms were in use
from March 2014.

During the reporting period, 99 new applications, 287 annual
re-assessments and 240 change applications were processed under
the Insurance Intermediaries Quality Assurance Scheme (IIQAS).
Compared to the previous reporting period, there was a growth of
16% and 11% for the new applications and annual re-assessments
respectively but a fall of 21% in the change applications.

With effect from November 2014, programmes categorised under the
Insurance industry and accredited under the Qualifications Framework
(QF) will be recognised as qualified CPD activities under the CPD
Programme of lIQAS.

For the Estate Agents Authority CPD Scheme, five new applications,
34 annual re-assessments and one change application were
assessed, which represented an annual decrease of 67% and 53%
for the new applications and annual re-assessment applications.
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Breakdown of assessed CPD programmes for IA (1 April 2014 — 31 March 2015)
KRN RE PN ANFEERESREHE (2014F4A18-201553A31H)
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Enhancement of Services

For the purposes of increased transparency and alignment with
the practice of other quality assurance agencies, HKCAAVQ has
published 177 summary accreditation reports of local academic and
vocational programmes since September 2013.

A survey collecting feedback from accredited operators was also
conducted. Most of the respondents agreed that the publication
of summary accreditation reports enhanced the transparency of
accreditation outcomes and that the content of the summary reports
was appropriate and clear. HKCAAVQ will further consult operators
on the publication of summary report for our other accreditation
services including Programme Area Accreditation and Periodic
Review.

Following the publication of new Guidelines on the Four-Stage QA
process under the QF, new Guidance Notes on IE, LPA and Re-LPA
were published in March 2015.

Looking Forward

With the rapid development and growing public recognition of QF,
together with the new initiatives and support schemes introduced
by the Government, it is expected that the demand for accreditation
service in the VET sector will continue to increase.

HKCAAVQ will continue to perform its dual roles as “gate-opener”
and “gate-keeper” in the pursuit of continuing education and lifelong
learning in the community.

RABRBER

B @%F&EE@E%% B
- STERBE2013F9AR R T177
DEREA BN LB EEFEREZNTE
WERWE -

ﬁ%%ﬂ?%ﬁ%%%%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ
ERAT  omEERBQMTER
%%ﬁ%%%%ﬁi“ﬂﬂé$%g BRIEHE - A%
i%EmWeﬁWﬁAﬁO%%%hL
—FREAERE A B A EMTRRS
BREEMEKBIENEHNEENTER
ERENER -

[ERERE | THEREEZRERFED
M TE] - [RETEI M REE
Z | BHID 2015538 A -

AREREE

%%éf EEMRREERARHER
REMNRAE B RRA BT EEE
AR IR RS IR AT S - TR S
IS F TR RS B R LB INER
] °

HERSHERTEL  BRRMNE
RIRETIE - MO A (e RN KA
HERRGBENREER -



Qualifications Assessment

HKCAAVQ offers qualifications assessment services for the general
public, organisations, and government bureaux/departments on
qualifications awarded by granting bodies outside Hong Kong.
The assessment is conducted on an individual basis to assess the
totality of a person’s educational qualification by comparing the
learning outcomes achieved through their learning path against the
standard of a particular qualification obtained in Hong Kong. We
are also engaged by the Education Bureau to provide qualifications
assessment services for prospective teachers with overseas
qualifications who wish to apply for teacher registration in Hong Kong.

Rising Demand for Assessment Service

In 2014/15, HKCAAVQ processed 3,997 qualifications assessment
cases, a 12 % rise when compared to the figure in the previous
reporting year. This year, we received more applications from
individuals as well as from organisations; such as the international
schools in Hong Kong and more qualifications pitched at Bachelor
Degree level have been assessed due to the rising demand for
teacher training qualifications assessment. While the United Kingdom
and Mainland China remained the two major sources of demand for
our assessment services, we also saw a significant rise in the number
of applications from India. These Indian qualifications are submitted
through the Quality Migrant Admission Scheme (QMAS) that aims to
attract highly skilled or talented persons to settle in Hong Kong.
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Qualifications Assessment Cases by Source of application (1 April 2014 — 31 March 2015)
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Level of Major Qualifications held by Applicants (1 April 2014 — 31 March 2015)
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Place of Award of the Major Qualifications held by Applicants (1 April 2014 — 31 March 2015)
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Qualifications Assessment

Increased interest in Recognition of
Qualifications

In recent years, Mainland China and Taiwan have emerged as higher
education study destinations for local senior secondary graduates.
The increased mobility of students has led to an increasing need for
recognition of non-local qualifications from these nations. In 2014/15,
the number of applications for assessment of qualifications obtained
in Mainland China and Taiwan has increased by 7% and 11%
respectively; and the percentages of these qualifications assessed
and considered to meet the standard of comparable qualifications
under the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework (QF) are 99% and
94% respectively.

There has been an increased interest from the public on issues like
the recognition and authenticity of qualifications which indicates
the importance of our qualifications assessment work. Last year,
we continued to reach out to the community to enhance public
understanding of our principles and process for conducting
qualifications assessment through public presentations and
interviews.
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Qualifications assessed and considered to meet the standard of comparable qualifications under QF

(1 April 2014 - 31 March 2015) *
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Benchmarking against International
Best Practice

To keep abreast of the development of international practices of
qualifications assessment, we attended the United Kingdom National
Recognition Information Centre (UK NARIC) Annual Conference held
in London in November 2014. HKCAAVQ signed a Memorandum
of Co-operation with UK NARIC in December 2014 and engaged
UK NARIC in the development of HKCAAVQ'’s Hong Kong Country/
Area Profiles (CAP). The CAP will contain comprehensive information
on a country/area’s education systems and qualifications. Through
developing and maintaining a set of CAPs covering different education
systems across the world, HKCAAVQ aims to enhance the efficiency
and quality of its qualifications assessment services.

Looking Forward

For continuous improvement of our qualifications assessment
services, HKCAAVQ has established a task force to review our policy
and guidelines. The review will be completed in 2015/16.

HKCAAVQ is currently developing the CAPs for Australia, Mainland
China and the United Kingdom. After completion of these CAPs in
mid-2015, we will begin the second phase of the project to develop
CAPs for other countries/areas including Canada, New Zealand,
South Africa, Taiwan and the United States of America. The remaining
five CAPs will be completed by the end of 2015.

We expect that the demand for QA will continue to increase. However
changes to QMAS initiated by the Immigration Department may have
an effect on the number of applicants received under this scheme.
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Qualifications Register

The Qualifications Register (QR) is the public face of the Qualifications
Framework (QF). It is an online database containing information
on QF-recognised qualifications and their associated providers. It
provides a free one-stop service for the local community including
students, parents, employers, employees, education and training
providers, and appointed assessment agencies, to search for quality-
assured qualifications.

As the designated QR Authority in the Accreditation of Academic
and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (Cap 592), HKCAAVQ is
responsible for developing and maintaining the QR to ensure its
reliability and integrity.

Qualifications on the QR

As of March 2015, there are around 8,800 qualifications registered
on the QR, which is a decrease of 17% compared to the figures in
March 2014. The decrease in QR records was mainly due to the
expiry of 2,700 records from the Employees Retraining Board (ERB)
arising from the need for re-titling for compliance with the Award
Titles Scheme (ATS).

In the year 2014/15, the QR hit rates have recorded an annual
growth of 25% with the highest hit rate occurring in the middle of
July following the release of the Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary
Education (HKDSE) Examination results.
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Award Titles Scheme and Use of QF
Credit on the QR

To facilitate self-accrediting operators to meet the requirements of
ATS and/or use of QF Credit by the 1 January 2016 deadline set
by the Education Bureau (EDB), we have devised standardised
procedures and templates for operators to use for indication of QF
Credit and/or changes in titles in learning programmes that are yet
to conform to the requirements to ensure that these changes can be
published on the QR in a timely manner.

Credit Accumulation and Transfer on the
QR

In August 2014, HKCAAVQ offered all its accredited operators a free
uploading service to provide CAT information on existing learning
programmes on the QR. Nine operators responded positively,
leading to a total of 543 programmes identified on the QR with CAT
arrangements. Following the implementation of the CAT (Institutional)
and CAT (Programme) features on the QR, 281 more programmes
with CAT arrangements from eight operators were listed on the QR in
March 2015.

Vetting and Advertisement Monitoring

One of HKCAAVQ’s functions as the QR Authority is to vet and
guide uploading of qualifications by operators on the QR to ensure
that qualifications published on the QR are consistent and accurate.
During the year, briefings were provided to operators on a needs
basis in order to facilitate the vetting process. Of the 1,043 QR
batches uploaded on the QR during the reporting period, the average
vetting time per batch was around one working day.

Last year, we detected misleading claims from five operators, a
64% drop when compared to the figure in the previous year. These
cases concerned the use of the QF logo and the omission of required
information in the publicity materials.
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QR System Enhancement

In support of the Government policy directives for the QF, such as
the Award Titles Scheme (ATS), Use of QF Credit and the Credit
Accumulation and Transfer (CAT) Policy, HKCAAVQ implemented a
number of enhancement projects in the QR.

e Launch of CAT function on the QR

With the introduction of the policy and principles of Credit
Accumulation and Transfer (CAT) under the QF to strengthen the
support for learners’ mobility and progression in their learning
pathways, HKCAAVQ enhanced the search function on the QR
by two separate phases in July and October 2014 to identify
programmes and institutions that have CAT arrangements in
place on the QR.

¢ Introduction of the CAT (Institutional)
and CAT (Programme) icons

In January 2015, two icons, namely CAT (Institutional) and CAT
(Programme), were introduced to identify programmes and
institutions with different types of CAT arrangements on the QR.
This refinement was an important move towards building a CAT
centralised database on the QR and reflected the readiness and
maturity of providers in implementing CAT.

¢ Introduction of a new search
criterion for Specifications of Generic
(Foundation) Competencies (SGC)-
based Programmes

A new Qualification Type titled SGC was incorporated on the
QR in January 2015 for identification and search of SGC-based
programmes.
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¢ Re-configuration of “Industry” and
“Branch” search fields

The re-configuration of the “Industry” and “Branch” data
fields on the QR conducted in consultation with the EDB and
Qualifications Framework Secretariat (QFS) was launched in
January 2015. It covered the following scope:

(@ Combining the two industries of “Beauty” and “Hairdressing”
into one new industry, namely, “Beauty and Hairdressing”;

(o) Re-titling the existing industry of “Chinese Catering” to
“Catering” for the expansion of the industry scope; and

(c) Rearranging the naming sequence of all industry
and branch titles listed in the pull-down menu of the
Qualifications Search page and the Operators/Assessment
Agencies Search page by alphabetical order.

QR Operators Briefing

HKCAAVQ with the support of the QFS and the participation of the
EDB organised the QR Operators Briefing on 16 January 2015. The
briefing provided an update on the CAT initiative implemented by the
EDB since July 2014 and the implementation progress of the ATS
and use of QF Credit. It was attended by 228 representatives from 97
operators from both the self-accrediting and the non-self-accrediting
sectors. The briefing was a useful platform for stakeholders to
exchange views and share their experiences.
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Looking Ahead

Upon the completion of the special one-off uploading services
for listing CAT information on the QR, HKCAAVQ will continue
to provide guidance and support to operators to encourage and
facilitate the listing of CAT arrangements on the QR with the ultimate
goal of developing a dedicated and centralised CAT repository for
qualifications at all levels.
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Knowledge management is a key focus of HKCAAVQ. A learning
organisation must have a process to effectively capture, develop
and share organisational knowledge. This process is important in
supporting and reviewing the core accreditation services provided
by HKCAAVQ. Research is also important in ensuring that our
consultancy and training services are up-to-date and align with
international standards and practices. As a capacity building strategy,
HKCAAVQ'’s accreditation and QA training activities cover existing and
potential operators, staff members, as well as Specialists. To uphold
its recognition as a leading player in the quality assurance community
locally and internationally, HKCAAVQ provides consultancy services
relating to accreditation and QA, and also seeks to disseminate its
research findings, where appropriate, locally and internationally.

Developing Quality Indicators

With the launch of Phase 1 of the Quality Management System
(QMS) in February 2015, HKCAAVQ has embarked on analysis of
the data captured in the system. QMS is a knowledge management
system collecting information on accredited operators and learning
programmes. Analysis of such information can inform decision and
policy making, as well as construct track records of operators in
relation to delivery of accredited learning programmes. It is anticipated
that such records will enable HKCAAVQ to better assess the maturity
of operators and respond accordingly.

Consultation on Scope of Sub-areas for
Programme Area Accreditation

Since the launch of the Qualifications Register (QR) in 2008,
qualifications and learning programmes have been classified into 21
areas of study and training. This classification system is referenced by
HKCAAVQ in defining the scope of programme areas in Programme
Area Accreditation (PAA), which is the third stage of the Four-stage
Quality Assurance (QA) Process.
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The Liaison Committee on Quality Assurance (LCQA), which was
established by the Education Bureau to promote sharing of good
practices among local quality assurance agencies. It comprises
representatives from the Education Bureau, the Quality Assurance
Council (QAC) under the University Grants Committee (UGC), the
Joint Quality Review Committee (JQRC) and HKCAAVQ. In early 2014
the LCQA commenced a review of the 21 areas of study and training.
The review resulted in a new classification system with 14 areas
of study and training being proposed. In light of this development,
HKCAAVQ is proposing the creation of sub-areas for each area of
study and training, with each sub-area described by an illustrative
general statement. The creation of sub-areas is intended to provide
guidance for defining the scope of a programme area in PAA, while
not restricting the flexibility of programme design and development.
However, it is anticipated that the sub-areas may not be able to
cater for all situations. Therefore, some general guiding principles
are also proposed for defining programme areas in PAA on a case-
by-case basis. HKCAAVQ has consulted stakeholders on the new
classification system including the proposed sub-areas and the
respective scope statements.

Gauging Feedback for Continuous
Enhancement of Services

As a quality assurance agency, it is important for HKCAAVQ to
continuously monitor and improve its services. In this regard,
feedback is collected from operators, Panel Members and Experts
engaged in accreditation exercises, as well as from institutions
using HKCAAVQ services. The surveys, forming part of the internal
quality assurance process of HKCAAVQ), are conducted primarily
through online platform. Surveys of Panel Members and Experts
are conducted in-house, covering Panel Members’ and Experts’
observations on the accreditation process and the support provided
to them by HKCAAVQ. In 2014, over 93% of Panel Members and
Experts indicated positive responses in all questions indicating a high
level of satisfaction. We continued to engage a professional agency
to undertake the annual Operators’ Survey on the accreditation,
assessment and QR services provided by HKCAAVQ in the reporting
period. Operators were also invited to provide feedback on the
service tools and processes. Among a total of 372 client operators
identified as having used our service(s) in 2013, 244 of them
responded to the survey and the response rate was 66%. The mean
scores of the overall satisfaction measured on a five-point scale range
between 3.67 and 4.11. This represents a general satisfaction with
the services provided by HKCAAVQ.
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In line with good survey practices adopted by HKCAAVQ, data
collected from the surveys are kept in strictest confidence and are
used for improvement purposes only. Reports of the surveys are
reviewed by the Council; findings and follow-up actions are shared
with the respondents through the release of reports on the online
platform, and during activities such as the training workshops and the
Annual Operators’ Briefing.

Consultancy Services

HKCAAVQ provides consultancy services to organisations and
government bureaux both in and outside Hong Kong. One of the
key projects undertaken by HKCAAVQ in the reporting period was
the development of the scope and content of the higher education
evaluation framework in Macao, generic outcomes standards
framework for learning programmes at degree or above levels and
a bachelor degree qualification benchmark. This consultancy was
commissioned by the Tertiary Education Services Office of the
Government of the Macao Special Administrative Region.

After a process of consultation, four sets of guidelines were
developed, covering institutional accreditation, new programme
accreditation, institutional audit and the guidelines for use by external
quality assurance agencies and were presented to the higher
education sector of Macao in October 2014. A pilot study on new
programme accreditation to test the guidelines and seek participating
higher education institution’s feedback commenced in late 2014 and
is expected to be completed by 2016.
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Specialists Appointment and
Management

Peer review is one of the underpinning principles of accreditation.
For this purpose, HKCAAVQ maintains a Register of Specialists
from which HKCAAVQ selects Specialists with relevant experience
and expertise for participation in accreditation exercises, and other
assessment and consultancy work as required. At the end of the
reporting period, the Register comprises 492 Specialists covering 40
industries and 21 Areas of Study and Training. These Specialists are
practitioners from various industries as well as academics who have
specialised knowledge and experience in areas such as organisational
management, programme development, delivery and management as
well as quality assurance. About a quarter of these Specialists reside
outside Hong Kong. Drawing from their experience and expertise,
these non-local Specialists are normally engaged to provide an
international perspective in academic accreditation exercises.

Number of Local and Non-local Specialists
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- - - - - S :
Training and Capacity Building 1EISEE
HKCAAVQ offers various types of capacity building activities to AERRRZEWENTERERREN
prepare programme providers and specialists for accreditation TRIZXVFIES - LMEETIED
exercises. These include training workshops, briefings, seminars and B RIS E%E c HPMIRERL
other events. HKCAAVQ also runs tailor-made fee-for-service in- MEREY MENEE - BHBRHTAD
house training programmes upon request by interested operators/ I TR -
organisations.
In the reporting period, HKCAAVQ organised 30 events which were FERRERA - FTE R LB T305E
attended by 969 participants. SEE) - 2 A RIEIIA ©

Breakdown of Capacity Building Events (1 April 2014 - 31 March 2015)
FEREPTIEEHEE (2014F451H £2015F38318)

Number of
Programme
Number of Number of Providers
Targets Type of Activities Sessions Participants SHENRE
HR SEENER HEIEH SHEAY EEHE
Programme Providers  Briefing fish & 1 89 62
1 £ gk
REEME Thematic Seminar 2 62 19
e
Workshop T {E3 14 476 285
Tailor-made 4 133 4
In-house Training
Workshop/Briefing
A& IE S TSR/
EE
Specialists Appointment 1 89 NA
Bx Ceremony
Z{THE
Workshop T {E$h 6 104 NA
Experience Sharing 2 16 NA
Session
Kemo=ze
On-line Training NA 94 (hit rate) NA
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To enhance providers’ understanding of the assignment of QF credit
value to learning programmes, and the assessment of the credit
allocation by HKCAAVQ in accreditation, the Education Bureau
commissioned HKCAAVQ to run a series of eight workshops in
2014, with seven falling within the reporting period. The series was
attended by more than 250 participants coming from approximately
100 providers.

During the reporting period, HKCAAVQ also organised two seminars
to explore with providers the issue of assessment in outcome-based
education, and how different professional bodies assess programmes
on the basis of outcomes. With the sharing from experienced
academics and professionals, the two seminars were well-received
and attended by more than 60 participants.

Surveys were conducted for all training events to gauge participants’
feedback on various aspects of the arrangement. The training
activities were well-received, and follow-up actions were taken on
a need basis in response to the comments from participants. To
monitor the effectiveness of the training, pre/post-tests and annual
post-workshop participant evaluation were conducted as to inform
future improvement.

Looking Forward

HKCAAVQ will continue to explore ways to better meet the needs
and expectations of the education and training sectors, and to
work closely with the operators to enhance their quality assurance
capacities. It is envisaged that through solid research and sound
knowledge management, HKCAAVQ will respond more actively,
and proportionately to the highly dynamic education and training
environment, while paying attention to the diversity in the sector.

BINRREENEHETERED R
B RTHRIAERBWNATGERED
FHERBXHE BEFT  M2014F 84 7
NG EREDTIEY] - G HRE
TS TR - H100EZHELRE
ANBUE250A o

b - BRI AEMERM T B
HHE - 4T RARHRRELE
REGEBOBE BRI EFRE
MBS R - R B
Bk o FBHRE S HABOOAH
BT -

FEREBLEERSHE  WEES
BR - EMEHRENRETIE - B3EM
5 OBIEREEXEBE - UL B
RIEFI TERORCRE - BR T AR IS ETT
ADAIEROR - TR fTFEIR I TIEY
AR - AR E R -

ARREE

BEFRR  FERBEERIRE 7
KEBHBERBIANTERBRE
WEEHMEZTET  RITERIEZNE
ERE - BBEREROMERIBE
2 AERUHEEERES QRS
AR LB RIEFIRIR - R X
EEELIZERE ZRNESR -

53



L Liotson

2%

o5
4¢
Externa

394

& kngogement




External Liaison and Engagement

HKCAAVQ attaches great importance to establishing and
maintaining effective communication with our stakeholders locally
and internationally to enhance their understanding of our role and
quality assurance process and to learn from this engagement. We
are also committed to promoting and disseminating good practices
on quality assurance in the local and international quality assurance
communities.

In 2014, we undertook a comprehensive review of our communication
strategies and developed a Communications Plan to provide a
structured framework for commmunication with our wide range of
stakeholders, including users of our quality assurance services,
Specialists, professional bodies and authorities, quality assurance
agencies worldwide and the public at large. In the course of the year,
we continued to engage our stakeholders to create understanding of
and support for our quality assurance work. Through a multipronged
approach we are better able us to exchange views and knowledge
with our stakeholders. This dialogue will inform the continuous
development of our services.
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Engaging the Local Community

HKCAAVQ organises different activities such as seminars, briefings
and meetings to keep stakeholders in the local community abreast
of our latest developments and initiatives, and to listen to their views
and feedback on our services. We also arrange various capacity
building activities to prepare our key quality assurance partners for
accreditation exercises.

As the Accreditation Authority under the Qualifications Framework
(QF), HKCAAVQ supports the implementation of QF by taking part in
conferences, briefings and consultations on relevant policy initiatives.
Last November, we participated in the HKQF Conference organised
by the Education Bureau to share views on the alignment of HKQF
with the European Qualifications Framework. The conference allowed
us to share our expertise and experience in integrating quality
assurance and qualifications framework with representatives from
different countries.
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External Liaison and Engagement

HKCAAVQ plays an active role in the local QA community and takes
part in the development and enhancement of the quality of education
provision in Hong Kong. In 2014, we took part in the Federation for
Self-financing Tertiary Education (FSTE) 20th Anniversary Conference
and the Hong Kong/Guangdong Higher Education Co-operation
Seminar to discuss with representatives from higher education
institutions and government officials the way forward on higher
education development. The conferences discussed the challenges
and changes faced by the self-financing post-secondary sector
and enabled us to identify issues of concern in the sector on policy
matters and teaching and learning.

In the vocational education and training (VET) sector, we continued
to maintain close contact with the Industry Training Advisory
Committees (ITACs) through participation in their meetings and
activities. Throughout the year, we met members of various ITACs
to explain our role and approach to accreditation under QF. Not only
did these dialogues and exchanges allow us to keep abreast of the
industries’ developments and demands, but it also provided us with
useful suggestions on the support we could offer for their efforts to
undergo accreditation.

In order to enhance work efficiency and information availability,
HKCAAVQ has initiated a three-phrase IT infrastructure development
project to create a Quality Management System (QMS). With the
support of the Education Bureau through the Quality Enhancement
Support Scheme (QESS), phase one of the IT project has been
completed and the QMS was launched in February 2015. We are
now working on phase two to develop an internet portal for efficient
communication and sharing of documents among HKCAAVQ,
operators and accreditation panels.
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External Liaison and Engagement

EIBUN:E

Building Global Networks

HKCAAVQ collaborates and forms partnership with quality assurance
bodies worldwide with an aim to learn from good practices, to
strengthen our quality assurance capacity and to share our good
practices with sister organisations.

In 2014/15, we entered into Memoranda of Co-operation/
Understanding with four quality assurance agencies, namely the
Academic Quality Agency for New Zealand Universities (AQA), Council
for Private Education, Singapore (CPE), Quality and Qualifications
Ireland (QQI) and UK National Recognition Information Centre (UK
NARIC). The agreements are expected to facilitate cooperation in
areas such as exchange of ideas and information, staff development,
participation in external quality audits and joint programmes.

In September 2014, we joined hands with one of our quality assurance
partners, the Japan National Institution for Academic Degrees and
University Evaluation (NIAD-UE), to organise a workshop in Hong
Kong to discuss commonalities and differences in the recognition and
quality assurance of higher education and transnational education
in both regions. We also discussed commonalities and differences
between the Hong Kong and Japan QA systems, and in particular
focused on how NIAD-UE conducts skill-based training for specialists
and operators. In November 2014, our staff participated in a technical
exchange at the New Zealand Qualifications Authority (NZQA) to
gain knowledge of its quality assurance policies, practices and
processes, in particular the development of graduate profiles, which
since January 2015 have been included in HKCAAVQ's summary
accreditation reports of degree programmes.
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External Liaison and Engagement

HKCAAVQ continued to maintain active participation in worldwide
quality assurance activities to foster exchange of knowledge and
experiences. We participated in 14 international conferences and
delivered speeches in nine of them, such as the Higher Education
Evaluation Center International Forum held in Beijing in September
2014, the Australian International Education Conference held in
Brisbane in October 2014, the Annual Conference of the Korean
Association of International Educators held in Busan in February
2015 and the Sino-Australia Forum on Transnational Education and
Student Mobility in Beijing in March 2015.

Apart from presenting papers in the international conferences, we
also participate in the “Quality Beyond Boundaries” (QBB) meetings —
a forum for countries that are most active in transnational education
(TNE) either as countries sending or receiving international institutions
and/or students. The group aims at addressing current issues in
international quality assurance and improve the quality assurance
process for international branch campuses. With this common aim
the QBB partners are now working towards the development of a
zone of trust for sharing information, QA practices, reviewers, and to
look at concrete ways in which existing cooperation could be taken
further to facilitate QA of TNE provision.
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External Liaison and Engagement

EIBUN:E

From time to time, HKCAAVQ hosts delegations from and pays
visits to overseas quality assurance bodies. In 2014, we invited
representatives from the Higher Education Evaluation & Accreditation
Council of Taiwan (HEEACT) and Taiwan Assessment and Evaluation
Association (TWAEA) to give talks to our staff on the quality assurance
system in Taiwan and their evaluation mechanisms. Also in the same
year, we received representatives from the European Commission
and the European Qualifications Framework (EQF) Advisory Group to
provide them with a general overview of the quality assurance system
in Hong Kong and how we integrate the QF, in particular, the Generic
Level Descriptors in our accreditation exercises.

Looking Forward

HKCAAVQ in its Vision Statement aspires to be “locally, nationally,
regionally and globally recognised as an efficient, effective, innovative
and accessible QA agency.” Guided by this vision statement, we set a
strategy to actively participate in the international QA community and
we consider it important to cooperate with QA agencies worldwide
to benchmark our approach and learn from their good practices. As
part of this strategy, we have recently applied for affiliate status of
the European Association for Quality Assurance in Higher Education
(ENQA)'. We expect to receive the external report from the external
review panel on the result of our compliance with the International
Network for Quality Assurance Agencies in Higher Education
(INQAAHE)’s Guidelines of Good Practices (GGP) in Quality Assurance
in mid 2015. We will then apply to INQAAHE for recognition of our
work in alignment with the GGP. Owing to the international nature of
higher education in Hong Kong, we will continue to consolidate and
extend our international reach to keep abreast of the relevant world
trends and best practices.

' The European Association for Quality Assurance in Higher Education (ENQA)

is an umbrella organisation which represents quality assurance organisations
from the European Higher Education Area (EHEA) member states. ENQA
promotes European co-operation in the field of quality assurance in higher
education and disseminates information and expertise among its members
and towards stakeholders in order to develop and share good practice and
to foster the European dimension of quality assurance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUKHONREE

TO THE COUNCIL MEMBERS OF

HONG KONG COUNCIL FOR ACCREDITATION OF

ACADEMIC AND VOCATIONAL QUALIFICATIONS
BEREMRBEERIER

(Established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of
Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Council for
Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (the “Council”)
set out on pages 64 to 105, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2015, and the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, statement of changes in reserves and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Council Members’ Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The council members are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and for such internal
control as the council members determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 15 of the Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
Ordinance (Cap.1150), and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
council members, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Council as at 31 March 2015, and of its deficit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Council for the year ended 31 March
2014 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on these statements on 19 September 2014.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 September 2015
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ERRkEMZENRGR
for the year ended 31 March 2015 @& _E—h&=RB=+—BLFE
Note ff it 2015 2014
HK$ &% HKS &
Income WA
Accreditation fees FF- 5 & 39,313,925 30,756,743
Advisory and consultancy fees =& 7 & & £ 16,939,179 22,342,356
Qualifications assessment fees & & 7T 4 & 8,745,617 7,677,070
Quialifications registry fees & & 2,247,276 1,719,298
Government grants BT B) 4,512,456 2,617,951
Investment income & & WA 5 1,290,059 883,852
Other income E Uit A 6 1,759,420 83,327
74,807,932 65,980,597
Expenditures 3z
Staff costs & TR (53,876,632) (49,722,628)
Administrative expenses 1TE & F (15,357,534)  (13,905,088)
Direct accreditation/consultancy costs B 1 :F 2 B A 24 (9,902,811) (7,840,655)
Council meeting and committee expenses AR @# M EE @ H (655,488) (753,859)
(79,792,465) (72,222,230)
Deficit for the year X EE 8 7 (4,984,533) (6,241,633)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Eth & E U # (X H)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
HEREET AL BB -
Available-for-sale equity securities: B] {t H & % 7K 7% 5%
Changes in fair value recognised during the year
RFEEEBRAAABENED 844,624 (756,351)
Reclassification to profit or loss upon disposal
HERBEMNOEERR (1,833,736) 32,160
Other comprehensive expense for the year
rEEEHME2EZH (989,112) (724,191)
Total comprehensive expense for the year
AEEEEXHEE (5,973,645) (6,965,824)

The notes on pages 68 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
M BRI

as af 31 March 2015 R“E—RFE=B=+—8

Note /1 &% 2015 2014
HK$ & #& HK$ & &

Non-current assets 3E R EN & E
Fixed assets [& & & & 9 17,085,682 21,547,982
Investments & & 10 15,804,941 15,257,943

32,890,623 36,805,925

Current assets B & &E
Accounts and other receivables [ U B 7% 1 E b & Uk 7% 11 6,586,332 6,233,946
Bank deposits and cash $R171F 3 MR & 12 41,845,015 43,465,701

48,431,347 49,699,647

Current liabilities R E & &

Deferred government grants i iE X /i 7 Bf) 13 3,522,573 2,517,951
Deferred revenue i ZE U A 14 6,881,141 8,426,891
Other payables and accruals H {th JEf BR 2k N =+ & 5,303,434 3,315,145
Provision for staff gratuities & T 475 B & Y 5 15 2,287,058 3,830,795

17,994,206 18,090,782

Net current assets &1 & &E FE 30,437,141 31,608,865

Total assets less current liabilities & & & &R R B & & 63,327,764 68,414,790

Reserves & 16

Accumulated surpluses £t 24 53,089,743 58,074,276

Investment revaluation reserve 1% & & it £ & 1,139,210 2,128,322

Total reserves &4 58 54,228,953 60,202,598

Non-current liabilities 3R & & &

Deferred government grants i fiE B fi5 # B 13 6,821,720 6,337,128

Provision for staff gratuities & T 47w B & 2245 15 2,277,091 1,875,064
9,098,811 8,212,192

63,327,764 68,414,790

The financial statements on pages 64 to 105 were approved and ABRZZE—RAFNLA+N\BHETIR

authorised for issue by the Council on 18 September 2015 and are HE )3 H N EEAT1058 2 BT 3R %

signed on its behalf by: WHTIATREEE
- \

Chairman Acting Executive Director

E HEEmEE

The notes on pages 68 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
EimBax

for the year ended 31 March 2015 @& _E—h&=RB=+—BLFE

Investment

Accumulated revaluation
surpluses reserve Total

g2\
Rt & ERY X
HKS$ HKS HK$
T P Nodics
At 1 April 2013 7220134 81H 64,315,909 2,852,513 67,168,422
Deficit for the year 784 & 518 (6,241,633) - (6,241,633
Other comprehensive expense for the year N4 € H b 2 32 H = (724,191) (724,191)
Total comprehensive expense for the year 2 5z H & &1 (6,241,633 (724,191)  (6,965,824)
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 72201443 531 B #12014%4 518 58,074,276 2,128,322 60,202,598
Deficit for the year 2K £ E518 (4,984,533 - (4,984,533)
Other comprehensive expense for the year N4 [E H A & E % — (989,112) (989,112)
Total comprehensive expense for the year £ E Xz A& 5t (4,984,533) (989,112)  (5,973,645)
At 31 March 2015 72201543 A31H 53,089,743 1,139,210 54,228,953

The notes on pages 68 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
B RFOSE 5 1058 BIHTiF 3 A 2R A AT — B °
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERER
for the year ended 31 March 2015 X "8—RAF=RA=+—08LEFE
Note ff i+ 2015 2014
HK$ &% HKS B ¥
Deficit for the year A~ £ & 18 (4,984,533) (6,241,633)
Adjustments for: FFEIE R
Depreciation #T & 8,550,210 8,543,744
Dividend income % 8 4 A (919,639) (683,554)
Interest income F B 4% A (370,420) (300,298)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale equity securities
& AT S IRANF F i Es (1,690,547) (32,160)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 1 & & F & & Wk (3,230) =
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
HEBEPAINKLERERE 581,841 1,386,099
(Increase) decrease in accounts and other receivables
JFE 457 B 5 R L At P LSRR (B hn) R > (352,386) 1,720,386
Increase in deferred government grants ¥ i B2 i 8 B 1 1 1,489,214 42,249
Decrease in deferred revenue & iE U AR 4> (1,545,750) (17,174)
Increase in other payables and accruals £ b & {<t BR 20 A0 fE 51 & 38 hn 1,988,289 1,252,285
(Decrease) increase in provision for staff gratuities
B T Mm@ 2% CRl) /N (1,141,710) 1,452,672
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
RERDASNEEFRE 1,019,498 5,836,517
INVESTING ACTIVITIES % & & &)
Payment for purchase of fixed assets & A B & E 3 (4,087,910) (3,390,127)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets H & & & & £ AT 15 708 3,230 =
Proceeds from maturity of held-to-maturity debt securities
RHAEZINEKEF IS HRE - 4,000,000
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale equity securities
& ATt S IRANE HFFTISRIA 12,560,801 2,697,639
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale equity securities
BB AT (& IR A R (12,433,250) (4,361,200)
Increase in bank deposits with maturity of more
than 3 months at acquisition
FERE A8 =1 B UA £ B BRE R1T /7 78 00 (10,055,703)  (10,031,581)
Interest received 2 W FI 5 397,306 326,771
Dividend received B, 4% & 919,639 583,554
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES & & /& B AT IR &5 58 (12,695,887)  (10,174,944)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RekREEEBYH A FE (11,676,389) (4,338,427)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
FUReLREEEY 33,434,120 37,772,547
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
FRRELREFEY 12 21,757,731 33,434,120

The notes on pages 68 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
M RIRMIEE

for the year ended 31 March 2015 &E"8—RAF=RA=+—08LEFE

1.

STATUS OF THE COUNCIL

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications (the “Council”) is a body corporate
established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance. Under
the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
Ordinance (Cap. 592) (the “Ordinance”) the Council
assumes its statutory role as the Accreditation Authority and
Qualification Registry (“QR”) Authority under the Qualifications
Framework (“QF”). As the Accreditation Authority, the
Council is responsible for developing and implementing the
standards and mechanisms for accreditation of academic and
vocational qualifications to underpin the QF and for organising
the accreditation exercises for the purposes as specified
in the Ordinance. The Council also provides advice to the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “HKSAR Government”) on the registration of non-local
academic and professional courses, the assessment on non-
local qualifications and also on educational standards and
qualifications generally. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, all other
Members and Executive Director of the Council are appointed
by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR Government. Also, the
determination of accreditation fees, the financial budget and
other operating policies of the Council are approved by the
HKSAR Government. Therefore the Council considered itself
to be a government-related entity.

The registered office address is 10 Siu Sai Wan Road, Chai
Wan, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(HK$), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Council.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

M BT EE (1)

for the year ended 31 March 2015 X "8—RAF=RA=+—08LEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The Council has applied for the first time in the current year the
following amendments to HKFRSs and a new Interpretation.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

HK(IFRIC) 21 Levies

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and the
interpretation in the current year has had no material effect
on the Council’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these financial statements.
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Notes fo the financial statements (continued)

M B WKRMEE (8)

for the year ended 31 March 2015 &E"8—RAF=RA=+—08LEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The Council has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments'

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations®

Disclosure Initiative®

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions*

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle®
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for the year ended 31 March 2015 X "8—RAF=RA=+—08LEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FERAFITERLESE
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL B EHREER (&
REPORTING STANDARDS B EREEL])
(“HKFRSs”) (continued) (#&)

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle*

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier
application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2014, with limited exceptions. Earlier application is
permitted.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FERFMTIREETE

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL BB HREER ([&HF
REPORTING STANDARDS B EmEZED]D

(“HKFRSs”) (continued) (%)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments E B R EER| 5
@I HE
R-BENEBMH T BBIER
GBI BB RIS BEY H
BRHET T - B BUHR
SRR B HBEN T —BF
BT MABBREEEIER
SAEURKRILERZRE UK
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IAQB AR 7 WAERE &)
AL THSERK TR AESR

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to
include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (“FVTOCI”) measurement category for
certain simple debt Instruments.

72

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in
other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event
to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

FERFEI REBTE
MR EEN (&
B BEHREEA]

(“HKFRSs”) (continued) (#&)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments & 78 B 7 R 5 2E Bl 55955
(continued) SR T A (&)

o The new general hedge accounting requirements o —RE RS ERTE

retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s
risk management activities have also been introduced.

The council members are still assessing the impact of
application of HKFRS 9 on the amounts reported in respect
of the Council’s financial assets and financial liabilities. It is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 9 until the Council performs a detailed review.

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (continued)

The council members anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future may have impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Council’s financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Council performs a detailed
review.

Except as described above, the council members do not
anticipate that the application of the other new and revised
HKFRSs will have a material impact on amounts reported
in the financial statements and/or disclosures set out in the
financial statements of the Council.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSSs, the collective term which includes
all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Council takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
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The principal accounting policies are set out below. FESHBEAINNAT -
Revenue recognition W 22 FE R
Rendering of services IRHEARTS

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Council and the amount of
revenue and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:
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0] fees for rendering of accreditation services to [0} MEERETIERS N
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(i advisory fees and consultancy fees are recognised in
the period in which such services are rendered;

(iii) fees for rendering of qualifications assessment services

(i) MR B RS IR
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are recognised in the period in which such assessment BEEH T ETAH E
work is completed; and FIARER

(iv) qualifications registry fees are recognised in the period
in which such services are rendered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Council and the amount of income can be
measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Council and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Council will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Council should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred revenue in the statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Council with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the
straight-line method as follows:

Leasehold improvements  Over the remaining term of the

lease
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 5 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Council reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Council estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Council as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
The Council is exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue
of section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Council has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Council will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money
is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Council’s financial assets are classified held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
dates that the Council has the positive intent and ability to
hold to maturity

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less any impairment (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity and debt securities held by the Council that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary
financial assets relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and dividends on AFS equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes
in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Council’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables (including accounts and
other receivables and bank deposits and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy in respect of on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as accounts
receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired
individually. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Council’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as
well as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
an account receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve.
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3.

—hFE=R=+—BLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Council are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Council after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Council are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

The Council’s financial liabilities, including other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Council derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Council derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Council’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the council members
have made in the process of applying the Council’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Held-to-maturity investments

The council members have reviewed the Council’s held-to-
maturity investments in the light of its capital maintenance
and liquidity requirements and have confirmed the Council’'s
positive intention and ability to hold those assets to maturity.
The carrying amount of the held-to-maturity investments is
HK$1,055,041 (2014: HK$1,081,927).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of held-to-maturity financial assets and
available-for-sale financial assets

On assessing any impairment of the Council’s held-to-maturity
financial assets and available-for-sale financial assets, the
Council evaluates, among other factors, the duration and
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than
its cost; and the financial health of and near-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry and
sector performance, changes in technology and operational
and financing cash flow.

INVESTMENT INCOME
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2015 2014
HK$ &8 HKS A&

Interest income 7| B A 370,420 300,298
Dividend income A% B A 919,639 583,554
1,290,059 883,852
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6. HA

2015 2014

HK$ 8 & HKS 7 i

Review of non-QF Accreditation 3E°& & 5t IR TG 255 & 17,058 9,356
Consultancy fee from external activities 5N2B)E B #Y EE RS & 1,688 5,734
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale equity securities
& Al S IR AR S ) e 1,690,547 32,160
Gain on disposal of fixed assets [&E & & H & Uz 3,230 2,230
Miscellaneous income E A lUg A 46,897 33,847
1,759,420 83,327
DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR 7. NEEEB

Deficit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

AEEBREHR,GEA) :

2015 2014
HK$ #&#s HKS & &

Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥7 & + T& M H bt F| 52,436,721 48,525,608
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds 3& i 14 A f& & 5% 1,439,911 1,197,020

Total staff costs & T AN42%8

53,876,632 49,722,628

Auditor’s remuneration 1% £t B Bl 4 132,000 146,300
Depreciation #7& 8,550,210 8,543,744
Minimum lease payments under operating leases

RELEHET N 64,445 50,372
Interest income from held-to-maturity debt securities

FEEIBEBESHOFNSUA (16,793) (49,884)
TAXATION 8. MIE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made IRBB (B RN ERTIR - A
in these financial statements as the Council is exempted N SR - B UL BB B T s
from taxation pursuant to section 87 of the Inland Revenue SIS E T EF o

Ordinance.
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9.

IR EE (88)
for the year ended 31 March 2015 &E"8—RAF=RA=+—08LEFE
|A_| ~.
FIXED ASSETS 9. BEEEE
Furniture
Leasehold and Computer
improvements equipment equipment Total

HERE HRANKE BIEEE k]

HKS$ &8 HKS$ & #& HKS$ & #& HKS$ & #&
COST A A
At 1 April 2013 72013F4 518 28,019,325 6,205,646 - 34,224,971
Additions N & 2,960,228 429,899 - 3,390,127
At 31 March 2014 720143 A831H 30,979,553 6,635,545 - 37,615,098
Additions R E 49,000 176,260 3,862,650 4,087,910
Disposals H & - (197,870) - (197,870)
At 31 March 2015 201543 831H 31,028,553 6,613,935 3,862,650 41,505,138
ACCUMULATED Z i€

DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2013 720134 818 3,591,248 3,932,124 - 7523372
Charge for the year A8 4F [ #7 8& 7,811,837 731,907 - 8543744
At 31 March 2014 72201443 H31H 11,403,085 4,664,031 - 16,067,116
Charge for the year AF[EHTE 7,850,187 700,023 - 8,550,210
Eliminated on disposals H & # 4 - (197,870) - (197,870)
At 31 March 2015 72201593 HA31H 19,253,272 5,166,184 - 24,419,456
NET BOOK VALUE B8R FE
At 31 March 2015 720153 A31H 11,775,281 1,447,751 3,862,650 17,085,682
At 31 March 2014 20143 A31H 19,576,468 1,971,514 - 21,547,982
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INVESTMENTS 10. BE
2015 2014
HKS$ &% HKS /&%
Unlisted held-to-maturity debt securities, at amortised cost
FEETRIA R HERE S REHEKA) 1,055,041 1,081,927
Available-for-sale equity securities listed in Hong Kong,
at market value
EEE e A HHERAES (RHE) 14,749,900 14,176,016
15,804,941 15,257,943
Fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities
HEZIPEBESN LA EBE 1,051,600 1,064,300
Fair value of individually impaired available-for-sale
equity securities (Note)
BRI ER A EERAFZ LN R R BE (HT) - 2,482,416

Note: As at 31 March 2014, certain of the Council’s available-
for-sale equity securities were individually determined
to be impaired on the basis of significant or prolonged
decline in their fair value below cost. Impairment losses
on these investments were recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the policy set out in note 3.
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94

11. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER 11. FE UK BR FX A0 H fth JE
RECEIVABLES WK
2015 2014

HKS$ & HKS$ & 1

Accounts receivable & U BR 7k 5,202,428 4,614,312

Deposits, other receivables and prepayments

e HtEYRERRIERR 1,178,997 1,493,915

Interest receivable &Y & 204,907 125,719
6,586,332 6,233,946

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These take into
account the customer’s past payment history, financial
position and other factors. These accounts receivables are
due on presentation of billings. Normally, apart from certain
customers with good credit ratings, advances are requested
from customers to cover the service fee before rendering of
services by the Council.

Included in the Council’s accounts receivables are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,657,704 (2014:
HK$2,376,495) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Council has not provided for impairment
loss. The Council does not hold any collateral over these
balances. Based on the historical experiences of the Council,
those receivables that are past due but not impaired are
generally recoverable as there was no recent history of default
and there has not been a significant change in credit quality of
the customers.

Aging of accounts receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

AEEHEmABL —EHHE
EENTEFPEREEME - ZE
EfEEZBERP AENNK
8k MR R EMER - &
LE 8 I AR TR A SR BB R ZR RIS A ©
—RmME - BREREELIRRL
MEPIN » REREHIRFE AT
EREFEMRBER -

KB EWFIREHEREERE
75 #61,657,70470 (ZF — Y 4F
7D 376,4957T) + 7% FE WAR X
REFHBDBET - NBIFELZ
LERIFETMIEE - REXARB
BALE  ELEaHETERE
R FE U BR 31 % P 0 4 38 /R R 8%
MEEEEE—ESYEERET -

780 # B 3 8 Rk B #9 FE W PR 3K
M AR -

2015 2014
HKS$ &8 HKS A

Less than 1 month 11& A A 1,649,704 1,920,441
More than 1 month 11& A LA £ 8,000 456,054
1,657,704 2,376,495
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MMM EE (B)
for the year ended 31 March 2015 X "8—RAF=RA=+—08LEFE
P Al =%
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH 12, RITEREBES
2015 2014
HKS &% HK$ 78 1
Deposits with banks $R17E HiTE X 23,272,400 22,979,298
Cash at bank and other financial institutions and in hand
& RIRITHE M AT 18,572,615 20,486,403
Bank deposits and cash in the statement of financial position
WM ERFITORITEARES 41,845,015 43,465,701

Less: Bank deposits with maturity of more than three
months at acquisition

W AR = 8 A LA BB ERTT E HifE K (20,087,284)  (10,031,581)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows
REMERMTANRCRRESEFEY 21,757,731 33,434,120

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT 13. IEFE AT BY
GRANTS
2015 2014

HK$ & #& HKS & 1
Balance as at 1 April 34 A1 8 04554 8,855,079 8,812,830
Grants received and receivable & U5 & Ut BY 4,233,247 2,549,919
Interest thereon fE&TF 8, 18,423 10,281
Recognised as income during the year & R B #ER AW A (2,762,456) (2,517,951)
Balance as at 31 March A3 A31H ) 45 &4 10,344,293 8,855,079
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities
B RnBEBEETEENSE (3,522,573) (2,517,591)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities
FERBBEEBE NS 6,821,720 6,337,128

The grants are for supporting the costs of the Quality
Enhancement Support Scheme projects and relocation costs
of the new office of the Council.

MBARN M ERE R
ZIRB B - ARA R =

BE VB AR
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for the year ended 31 March 2015 &E"8—RAF=RA=+—08LEFE

14. DEFERRED REVENUE 14. EZEUA
Deferred revenue represent amounts billed or received for ELEWA BFARERETE A
programme accreditation, advice on the registration of non- K JEZR 40 ERAZ FE AN & FE AT Ah
local courses and qualifications assessment, less amounts RESEIMARSIUWEAESEE -
recognised as income during the year. WHBRFAEERBRAN
BAETHE o
15. PROVISION FOR STAFF 15. ETXNRMESER
GRATUITIES
2015 2014
HK$ & ¥ HK$ & %
Balance as at 1 April R4 A1H 5,705,859 4,253,187
Provision made 12 # £ 3,472,490 4,019,705
Provision utilised B F 2 (4,614,200) (2,567,083)
balance as at 31 March 3831 H 4,564,149 5,705,859
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities
R ORBAMIE TR BEN S (2,287,058)  (3,830.795)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities
FRBABETHEENSHE 2,277,091 1,875,064
16. RESERVES 16. #E&
(@) Components of the Council’s (@) ZEEEERER
reserves
The opening and closing balances of each component BEESEFERDRAR
of the Council’s reserves and reconciliation between o VI LASEIE €
these amounts are set out in the statement of changes FEREY o AR FugEzs
in reserves. 7 RS ER o
(b) Investment revaluation reserve b) BREELFHE
The investment revaluation reserve comprises the NEEEEERS NG
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for- EEHMEIHEEDSS
sale securities held at the end of the reporting period MARBENEHES
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting SHEE s WARE N SRm e

policies in note 3. STBGRERRE -
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17. GERRKRERE
HRABRIIELERN MESH R
ERSNRRERESK  EIEA
HHEREREENETERZE
W T FUE T E - AEREER
BESLEIWBRERREEE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Since the Council is not profit-oriented and is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements, its primary
financial and capital management objectives are to maintain
a balance between annual income and expenditure, so that it
has the ability to operate as a going concern and perform its
statutory roles and functions. The Council is primarily financed
through the charging of fees for academic and vocational
accreditation services rendered which include validations,
revalidations, institutional reviews, qualifications assessments
and advisory/consultancy services. Any operating surplus shall
be carried forward to the following financial year to meet future
expenditure required for the operations of the Council.

The Council’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
years. The capital structure of the Council consists of cash
and cash equivalents and accumulated surpluses.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EABEH AR

BT AR -

AREMESEEREMEHD
B39 Ko B 3 B R 3| A 7% M BX
MER  FERGEREE &

FERE - BR

5 - AL

K& BRERY - S ER
PRBRREEERAOMEIRFER - A
FERARRANBEBERFHIFA -

ARHBRREEZFHTT
- ARMEARBEERER
REeFEMRRTRR

18. €@ T H

Categories of financial instruments SRl T BER¥ER
2015 2014
HK$ & #& HKS & 1
Financial assets £ @& &
Held-to-maturity investments 158 = B #§1% & 1,055,041 1,081,927
Available-for-sales investments aJ it &% & 14,749,900 14,176,016
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)
ERRERFGIE(BERERRSEED) 47,252,350 48,205,731
63,057,291 63,463,674
Financial liabilities £ @ & 1&
Amortised cost B # $5 A A 4,901,164 2,728,234
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Council’s major financial instruments include held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-sale investments, accounts
and other receivables, bank deposits and cash and other
payables. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Other price risk

The Council is exposed to equity price change risk arising
from its available-for-sale equity securities listed in Hong Kong
as disclosed in note 10.

The Council’s equity investments are companies listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. These equity investments
have been chosen based on their longer term growth
potential and are monitored regularly for performance against
expectations.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
10% (2014: 10%) higher/lower and all other variables held
constant, the investment revaluation reserve would increase/
decrease by HK$1,474,990 (2014: increase/decrease by
HK$1,417,602) for the Council as a result of the changes in
fair value of the available-for-sale investments.

LRI A (&)

MERREEEERK
&
rENFIERITAGREFESE
EHHRE  AMEHERE R
Wit BR R e HAth e KRR IR ﬁﬁf
AR REAMENRIE - ZF
ﬁﬂlﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%%ﬁ
FE-EZEeRIABEN
[R\fe B ¥R T 5 A (Kb ERE
) 1:% &mb@]é%ﬂ R
B 8 a0 e P2 1K 7% 5 3L B 0 R 3R
FIEINT - BIREEIE R EEZ
SR - AR AT KR B0t
REVGE S 1556 -

R

B 1 (E1E 7R

RIBMTI0RE  ARFER L
T A] B AR RE 25 R RE
ERZHEMR -

TRHBRABERKENERE
B RZ ST E TR AN R o
ARERBRELEREREER
RENRIEREH - WEHE
T/\%EE:

BREDH
BATF #0 BURE 53T T AR S 3R
BRFTAE MBS RSB M A ©

ﬁ*ﬁﬁ%%élﬂmmﬁi%/
TE10% (= Z— 110%) &
ﬁi;&ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁliﬁ%? N
BHREEHHFEESRATH
ERENDREEHM LA
TR #51 ,474,99070 (—F—M
F BT BB 1,417,602
JT) °
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The applied change of percentage represented management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in stock prices.
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Council’s deficit for the year and investment
revaluation reserve that would arise assuming that changes in
the market value had occurred at the balance sheet date and
had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Council which expose the Council to equity price
risk at balance sheet date. It is also assumed that none of
the Council’s available-for-sale equity securities would be
considered impaired as a result of a decrease in the prices of
respective equity securities and that all other variables remain
constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2014,

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2015, the Council’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Council due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the statement of financial position.

The Council’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
deposits, accounts receivables and investments in debt
securities.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Council has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Council reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the council members
consider that the Council’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

18. €I A (&)

BRE S ()
ERBALNEHAEREY
BRAEEA AT BB T -
ERGEE S WERABARF
EEBARASEREBNHNE
P8 YRERABFODER
BREBHREDY  FSEARE
it BIE A H AR B A M
HESEREAROSHMTA - Ut
5N AR IME AR T B A 4
£ A B 5 K T B T BT AT 38
WE - WA R R A A
BRE - —F—MENHITRINA
HRERE -

=ERB

R-E—RE=ZF=+—H XK

BRAHFTRITEAMS AR

SR BEENESEERR

ThEF F AR R R BT 51 BA Y AR BE 2
R EERNIREE -

AR FAE A= B R X E 2R
BR1TER - RUARSRAERE
HIRE o

REEREEERR  ARER
BECZEEKAEHNEERESRE
B EEfZREmEREN
HEE R BR B R A 5 e DA U2 (2] 780 B
BIR o IS - ARREREHR
EHEERNEZEBENA D
TR BRATIKESEEL
RARBERE - Lt s - A
BRERSABHEERRE
RIFRRIE -
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 18. @@ T A (&)

100

(continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Council’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. At the end of
the reporting period, the Council had a certain concentration
of credit risk as 24% and 78% (2014: 20% and 81%) of the
total accounts receivables that were due from the largest
customer and the five largest customers.

Bank deposits are normally placed with financial institutions
which have good credit ratings. Investments in debt securities
are with counterparties of sound credit ratings. Given their high
credit ratings, management does not expect any investment
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Council maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term.

At the end of the reporting period, the Council’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities is mainly
repayable on demand or within three months from the end
of respective reporting periods. In the opinion of council
members, the difference between the carrying amounts of
the financial liabilities and the undiscounted cash flows based
on the earliest date on which the Council can be required
to pay is not significant and therefore, no further analysis is
presented.

BBE 7 (&)

=ERR (&)
ZIK)%EEWH’JH%?H 2 EXE
BRABFHORRAATZE - NIk
HEHR AREEETEER
%+ B24% K 78% (—Z—PU4F :
20%K81% ) KA FE R FU2 5
FIREZARAREF °

RITEFFRBEFRREBRYE
SERTARM B - AREE
BEFREFRRAEBREE
BN HETF c ERHE R
WEEFR  EREYTRRE
U2 FETFETEITHENEE -

mEBE TR

REERBESERME @ &B
RSB RHNORSHFHE - AIBE
HERNAIEEEFMNER
MEHEEETAAKRZRE
BE - AneHR@ESEHER
RHZEK -

RBEHR - NEERABRNR
TEHNIBETERERSHR
HRBLHI=EARNEE - KB
RERA  ERABEREEMR
BARKFHEERTRRS
ZEBR/TEKX  EHit - REH
E—HHDIT2
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Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments
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18. € T B (&)

This note provides information about how the Council It BT o 452 BR AR B 4D ) 7 5 & 4R

determines fair value of various financial assets.

U

Financial assets

Available-for-sale equity

A ERRAE 5

There were no transfers into or out of Level 1.

Fair value of the Council’s financial assets that are [0} IREEHEEEUNRNAE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

The Council’s available-for-sale investments are KEAHEERERR
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting EHRZANBEEE

period. The following table gives information about TRIEH WA EFE &
how the fair value of this financial asset is determined (in MEENARBLER
particular, the valuation technique and input used). 5 BB 50 M A

BRE D (&)
cRITANAREBERE
TREENRAE-
B ENLARERMEE :
iR ©
Valuation technique
Fair value and key input
Fair value as at hierarchy fEELER
RREER AREEER FERAHE
2014
HKS &%
14,176,016 Level 1 Quoted bid price
F— in an active market

REBRTISREAE

F-ELEEMFMBAR
i o
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 18. @@ T A (&)

(continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(ii) Fair values of financial assets that are not measured at (ii)
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures
are required)

SMBE 7 ()
SBTAMDABEE
FEHEA R BETE
MEREE

BTIRAT ARKE
RRERERBRERZ
TREEMNSRAKRE
BEREQAAERL -

Except as detailed in the following table, the council
members consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
financial statements approximate their fair values.

2015 2014
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
BRESH AREE BREsE NAEBE
Held-to-maturity debt securities
BEEIHERES 1,055,041 1,051,600 1,081,927 1,064,300
19. OPERATING LEASE 19. EEASAIE

COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Council had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

RI|ER - NERET A HEH
REMEARZARRERE

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: ARIBYEHAENT
2015 2014
HK$ & % HKS 7 ¥
Within one year —F A 12 12
In the second to fifth years inclusive
FEZERF (EREMFRELA) 5 17
17 29

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Council for its office premises. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of 5 years and rentals are fixed for an average of
5 years. The Council has an option to renew the lease when
all terms are renegotiated.

REHENTEERABEX
MRAENEE - BHRESH
HIEFHRFEH - RBHEE
BEM - MAE GRS ETER
1P ©
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions related to the provision of accreditation
services to organisations in which a member of the Council,
key management personnel and the HKSAR Government
may have an interest are conducted in the normal course of
business and in accordance with the Council’s fee charging
policy and fee schedule as prescribed by the Ordinance.

Except as disclosed in (iv) and (v) below, all transactions
related to the procurement of goods and services involving
organisations in which a member of the Council, key
management personnel and the HKSAR Government may
have an interest are conducted in the normal course of
business and in accordance with the Council’s financial
obligations and normal procurement procedures.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Council had the
following related party transactions:

(i) Honorarium paid to Council members in the capacity
of

20. BERRS

FMERAREZEENE BRE
BABMBAENSENEEE
THHERDRXZHBERE X
BEE L RRABNE R
WHRRGHTHNER K
REBWER -

BRATNBRMBPTREE SN - P
FHEAREFENKE - BHEE
ABMBFE NS EEETT
MERTIRBISHBLERX
BEE  WERRABHI R
Al M IEERBIEFETT

B 7N B 75 S 3% BT % B8 A0 A2 5
HEERIN  AREBA TR
5

0] KB B AT 8D Fr
ey

2015 2014
HKS$ & HKS$ & &

Non-local Council members FEZN 5% B

208,000 208,000

Local Council members are not remunerated.

(ii) Key management personnel remuneration

AREEEAMMKE I T UE
Bl

(i) REEABRHE

2015 2014
HK$ & #& HK$ & %

Salaries and other emoluments ¥ & K& E b Bl & 6,114,211 5,516,991
Retirement scheme contributions iE k5T &I 4t 3k 35,000 25,000
6,149,211 5,541,991
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(i)

(i)

(V)

Key management personnel remuneration (continued)

Key management personnel comprise of the Executive
Director, Deputy Executive Director (Academic), Deputy
Executive Director (Vocational) and Financial Controller.
The above remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 7).

During the year ended 31 March 2015, approximately
22% (2014: 27%) of the Council’s total income
are derived from services provided to the HKSAR
Government, and approximately 19% (2014: 6%)
of it are derived from services provided to other
government-related entities. All the services are
conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with the Council’s fee charging policy and
fee schedule as prescribed by the Ordinance.

Effective from 1 September 2011, the Council has
entered into a lease with the HKSAR Government and
rented a vacant school premises in Siu Sai Wan Estate,
Chai Wan, Hong Kong at a charge of $1 per month
as its new office for an initial term of five years. The
Council completed the relocation of its office in July
2012. The HKSAR Government also provided HK$10
million funding support for conversion and renovation
of the new office of the Council (see note 13).

20. BEIRS ()

(i

(i)

RREEABNE (B)

MREEABBEAR
£ BlanEs (21
BlaeE () M5
e - LN EFTATE
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20. BEIRS ()

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

21.

(continued)

(v) During the year ended 31 March 2015, the HKSAR
Government also provided funding support of
approximately HK$1,050,000 (2014: HK$2,550,000)
and HK$2,661,000 (2014: HK$nil), respectively,
for phase | and Il of the Council’s IT infrastructure
development project, HK$522,000 (2014: HK$nil) for
the good practices in quality assurance project, and
HK$1,750,000 (2014: HK$nil) for the daily maintenance
and regular upgrading of the QR.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

To conform with the presentation of current year’s financial
statements, deferred income of assets related government
grants amounting to approximately HK$6,337,000 in the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014 has been
reclassified from current liability to non-current liability.

21.

v

HE_-_Z—RF=A
=+—RLEFEE &BF
BNED R ABEBHE
—REZHEABEE
WMEZBERETAEE
1,050,0007T (=& — I
& : B #2,550,0000T) &
7 #2.661,0000T (=&
—HE BB NE
o BI BN AEE
ERFHERH T B
522,0007T (ZZF — P4 :
BT RBLAEEE
MEBERFEAMARLR
#7 7&¥1,750,0007T (=
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i 3 6
BIREATEYHHREKE
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6,337,0007T B B i 1 BY iR i &
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for the year ended 31 March 2015 @& _E—h&=RB=+—BLFE

2015 2014
HK$ &% HKS$ 7t
Staff costs & T B A
Salaries ¥ & 47,988,704 43,208,877
Allowances and other staff costs 285 & Hith & T A 5,887,928 6,513,751
53,876,632 49,722,628
Administrative expenses 17 B &
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 £l Bl & 132,000 146,800
Bank charges #R1TF & & 29,055 25,822
Cleaning /5 28 290,770 331,428
Community relations 4t [& B8 1% 65,485 37,578
Consultancy fees i [ & 1,551,673 373,400
Depreciation 1 & 8,550,210 8,543,744
Incidental expenses #1857 ! 7,917 2,413
Insurance 1Rk & 281,201 255,391
Legal advisory fees A2 KA E 299,085 361,199
Membership fee & 8 & 83,284 77,983
Others E 92,633 78,149
Overseas visits and conferences 8 4M 25 A& 3% 370,972 208,198
Periodicals, newspapers and books Hi T/ - #R 4% fE A 15,593 38,283
Photocopying &2 1 & 30,955 22,975
Postage &5 % 39,743 32,546
Printing E1 i & 138,288 141,206
Publicity = {8 & 278,234 419,600
Recruitment and training 352 X 55 3 54,119 88,050
Reinstatement cost 2 {& ik 72 - 13,700
Rent and rates 78 & Hl 2 1 191,556 433,683
Repairs and maintenance 415 MR &8 715,814 254,634
Securities transaction charges 5% & & & 4,825 4,729
Security (R & & 165,600 436,099
Stationery and consumables X £ F3H #E 5 326,452 263,173
Telephone and facsimile & :EF{EE & H 319,886 312,527
Tools and equipment I B F1:& & 910,990 549,896
Transport and travelling X2 i@ & 38,754 34,386
Utilities 7K ~ & & 220,039 262,515
Work related research L {18 &8 31 152,401 154,981
15,357,534 13,905,088
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2015 2014
HK$ & & HK$ & &

Direct accreditation/consultancy costs

HETE BRARE

Accreditation costs 7 28 A 2 7,509,480 6,454,294

Qualifications Register costs & JFF £ ffft 5 2 2,393,331 1,386,361
9,902,811 7,840,655

Council meeting and committee expenses

rREBEREEEXH

Air passages # = 288,005 286,041

Honorarium payments Bl & < & 208,000 208,000

Hotel accommodation ;& JE 1T 78 & 75,856 119,922

Working lunches and dinners 7 75 4F 8% A1 i% 8 37 H 29,686 90,957

Subsistence allowance £ 8 & 24,050 26,650

Transport and miscellaneous expenses 338 & Fl it & 29,891 22,289

655,488 753,859
Total expenditure Xz i # #8 79,792,465 72,222,230

107



108

Appendices

i 6%

List of Council Members

Chairman

The Honourable Martin LIAO Cheung-kong, SBS, JP
Barrister

Martin Liao Barrister
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Ir Dr Alex CHAN Siu-kun

Managing Director

Applied Technology Integration Limited
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AUSTRALIA
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UK

Professor Mala SINGH
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Rhodes University
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Professor Andrew WALDER

Professor of Sociology and Senior Fellow
Department of Sociology

Stanford University

USA

Local Members

Mr Roger Thomas BEST, JP
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Professor Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin (since 1 June 2014)
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The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

AAERRERE

xE
B&)I#E, SBS, P
BRI KZRER
a1l

BERE

BRIKBE L - TI2EM
FERBR AR
EEmKE

A L &

Ms Ann DOOLETTE
Education Consultant
AUSTRALIA

Ms Aileen PONTON

Chief Executive

Scottish Credit & Qualifications Framework
UK

Professor Mala SINGH

Professor Extraordinaire

Centre for Higher Education Research
Teaching and Learning

Rhodes University

SOUTH AFRICA

Professor Andrew WALDER

Professor of Sociology and Senior Fellow
Department of Sociology

Stanford University

USA

Local Members

Mr Roger Thomas BEST, JP
Former Partner

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRAEDET 2% (201456 A1H )
EBBEITRE
RIEAER B R B BT



Mr Albert CHOW Hing-pong
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Professor Frank FU Hoo-kin, MH, JP (until 31 May 2014)
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Professor HAU Kit-tai, BBS, MH, JP
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The Chinese University of Hong Kong
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Chief Executive Officer
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Professor Paul LAM Kwan-sing, SBS, JP
Chief-of-Staff (Vice-President)
City University of Hong Kong

Ms Carrie LEUNG Ka-lai
Chief Executive Officer
The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers

Professor Arthur MAK Fuk-tat
Programme Director and Division Head
Biomedical Engineering

The Chinese University of Hong Kong

Professor PONG Ting-chuen (since 1 June 2014)
Professor of Computer Science and Engineering
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
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Ex-officio Members

Ms Michelle LI Mei-sheung, JP (until 16 July 2014)
Deputy Secretary for Education

(Representing the Permanent Secretary for Education)

Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP (since 28 July 2014)
Deputy Secretary for Education
(Representing the Permanent Secretary for Education)

Professor William LEE Keng-mun
Executive Director

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Quialifications

Terms of Reference of Committees

Qualifications and Accreditation Committee

ERARE

TEHL T+, P(E2014F7816H)
HEREWER
(HERBIWERAR)

Bt 4, JP (201457 A28H i#2)
HERRMER
HEREEWERAR)
FRENHE

FEEMEBEEETER
fEmE

FREEGHEHE
BERVERES

1)

To consider and make recommendations to the Council on
accreditation policies, criteria and procedures relevant to
the HKCAAVQ's statutory role as the Accreditation Authority
under the Qualifications Framework (QF) and those relevant to
non-QF-related services.

2) To consider and make recommendations to the Council on
policies and procedures for maintaining the Qualifications
Register (QR) in fulfilment of the HKCAAVQ's statutory role as
the QR Authority.

3) To consider/review and endorse for the Council’s approval the
policies, procedures and criteria for undertaking assessments
in regard to
e Non-local courses
e CEF courses
e CPD courses
e (Qualifications Assessment
e Any other relevant activities

4) To consider and advise on any other matters concerning or

affecting the Council’s accreditation and assessment work.
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Personnel and Administration Committee

1) To keep under review the staffing structure of the Council.

2) To monitor human resources policies and practices of the
Council and to recommend changes when necessary, paying
particular attention to staff development and training, the
remuneration package and matters of staff welfare.

3) To keep under review the administrative efficiency of the
Secretariat.
4) To make such other recommendations within its remit, as it

thinks fit, to the Council.

Finance Committee

1) To consider, and recommend for the Council’s approval,
the annual budget of the Council, including any subsequent
adjustments thereof.

2) To consider the medium and long term financial plans of the
Council.
3) To keep under review the financial position of the Council, in

particular its return on investment and fee charging policy, and
make recommendations to the Council as appropriate.

4) To receive, consider and recommend for Council’s approval
the audited financial statement.

5) To recommend, for the Council’s approval, the appointment
of Auditors.

Fund Management Sub-committee
(Sub-committee of the Finance Committee)
1) To set the investment strategy with a view to achieving the

investment objectives approved by the Council.

2) To make major investment decisions and to monitor the
results.
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Standing Review Committee for Qualifications
Assessment

1)

To conduct a review of the decision(s) made by the Council in
respect of a particular accreditation/assessment exercise.

To make recommendations to the Council in respect of the
concerned case with supporting reasons.

To answer questions from the Council after the submission of
the report for the purpose of clarifying its recommendations
and reasons.

To reconsider its recommendations upon request by the
Council.

Where necessary, to set specific rules and procedures for a
review.

Standing Panel on Programme Area Accreditation
(PAA) Scope

1)

To advise on the scope of the programme area should there
be disagreement between the HKCAAVQ Secretariat and the
operator under the following circumstances:

(i) when drawing up the Service Agreement on the basis
of the track record of the applied programme area(s)

(ii) when monitoring the offer of a new programme under

the approved PAA status.

To advise on the addition/deletion of programme area(s) in the
List of 21 Areas of Study and Training.
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